
-1- 

 

 
 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

 
AGENDA 

 
December 5, 2016 

 
 

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department 
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764. 

 
MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 
 
Al Boling, City Manager 
John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director 
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Scott Murphy, Planning Director 
Louis Abi-Younes, City Engineer 
Chief Brad Kaylor, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Art Andres, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
David Simpson, Facilities Development Manager 
Bob Gluck, Housing and Municipal Services Director 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

 
Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 
 
 



-2-

AGENDA ITEMS 

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. MINUTES APPROVAL

Development Advisory Board Minutes of November 21, 2016, approved as written.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV15-024: A Development Plan to construct a 1,050 SF industrial building
on a 0.13-acre parcel of land, located at the southeast corner of State Street and Sultana
Avenue, at 524 East State Street, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. Staff has
determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill
Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT), and was evaluated and
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (APN: 1049-231-04); submitted by Secured Income Group, Inc.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15332

2. File No. PDEV15-024 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve/Deny

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV14-040: A Development Plan to construct a five-story, 68-unit
residential apartment complex (Villa Palmetto) on 1.98 acres of land, located at the
southwest corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, within the HDR-45 zoning
district. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), a Mitigated
Negative Declaration has been prepared for the project. The proposed project is located
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT), and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land
Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 1011-382-04); submitted by Mission Pams
Investments, LLC.  Planning Commission action is required.



 
 

-3- 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
Motion to recommend Approval/Denial of a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 

2. File No. PDEV14-040 (Development Plan) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV16-042: A Development Plan to construct 55 single-family homes on 
approximately 7.07 acres of land within the P7 (single-family detached) residential land 
use designation of the Edenglen Specific Plan, located within two neighborhoods: the first 
bounded by Tulane Way to the north, Hampton Way to the east, Bradley Lane to the south 
and Claremont Drive to the west; and the second bounded by Riverside Drive to the north, 
the SCE utility easement corridor the east, Heritage Lane to the south and Cambridge Drive 
to the west. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with the Edenglen Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004051108) that was adopted 
by the City Council on November 1, 2005 and was prepared pursuant to the requirements 
of California Environmental Quality Act. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT), and was evaluated and 
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APNs: 218-931-01 thru 23, 218-931-75 thru 87 and 218-
941-57 thru 78); submitted by Brookcal Ontario, LLC. Planning Commission action 
is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous EIR 
 

2. File No. PDEV16-042 (Development Plan)  
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
If you wish to appeal a decision of the Development Advisory Board, you must do so within ten 
(10) days of the Development Advisory Board action. Please contact the Planning Department 
for information regarding the appeal process. 
 
If you challenge any action of the Development Advisory Board in court, you may be limited to 
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, 
or in written correspondence delivered to the Development Advisory Board at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 

The next Development Advisory Board meets on December 19, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

November 21, 2016

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Khoi Do, Chairman, Engineering Department  

Kevin Shear, Building Department  

Lora Gearhart, Fire Department  

Joe De Sousa, Housing and Municipal Services Agency 

Rudy Zeledon, Planning Department  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Charity Hernandez, Economic Development 

Sheldon Yu, Municipal Utilities Company 

Doug Sorel, Police Department 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 

Elly Antuna, Planning Department 

Marci Callejo, Planning Department 

Manoj Hariya, Engineering Department 

Michelle Starkey, Fire Department 

Pedro Rico, Building Department 

Maureen Duran, Planning Department 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the October 17, 2016, meeting

of the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Shear seconded by Mr. De Sousa;  and

approved unanimously by those present (5-0).

Item A - 1 of 2



Item A - 2 of 2



-1-

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION 
December 5, 2016 

DECISION NO.:  [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV15-024 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV15-024) to construct a 1,050 SF 
industrial building on a 0.13-acre parcel of land generally located at the southeast corner 
of State Street and Sultana Avenue, at 524 East State Street, within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1049-231-04); submitted by Secured Income Group, 
Inc. 

PART I: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

SECURED INCOME GROUP, INC., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has 
filed an application requesting Development Plan (PDEV15-024) approval, as described 
in the subject of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.13-acres of land located
at the southeast corner of State Street and Sultana Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A 
– Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations,
and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows:

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Vacant IND (Industrial) IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

North Railroad Rail RC (Rail Corridor) N/A 

South Single Family 
Residential 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential) 

LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential) N/A 

East Single Family 
Residential IND (Industrial) IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

West Industrial Warehouse IND (Industrial) IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

(2) Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV15-024) to
construct a 1,050 SF industrial building on a 0.13-acre parcel of land on the project site, 
located at the southeast corner of State Street and Sultana Avenue, at 524 East State 
Street. The building will have a setback of 90-feet from State Street to the north, 5-feet 
interior side setbacks, and 29-feet to the rear adjacent to the alley. Employee and visitor 
parking is located along the north side of the building fronting State Street. 

Item B - 1 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-2-

The proposed industrial building will be constructed of metal siding with a mix of exterior 
finishes such as corten metal wall panels, textured panels, and decorative lighting fixtures 
along the street frontage of State Street, as depicted in Exhibit C: Elevations. The project 
will provide for substantial landscaping and additional on-site and off-site sidewalk and 
parkway improvements to assist towards creating a walkable, safe area for pedestrians 
to access the project site (see Exhibit D: Landscape Plan). 

PART II: RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study 
has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Development Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act, 
or make recommendation to the Planning Commission, on the subject Application; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Application, and no comments were received 
opposing the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy Plan 
(General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of the 
properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by 
Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with 
the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT; and 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2016, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a 
hearing on the Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

PART III: THE DECISION 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

Item B - 2 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-3-

SECTION 1: As the decision-making body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed 
and considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. 
Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all 
written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 

(1) The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to
Section 15332 (32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is consistent with the Industrial General Plan designation and all applicable 
policies. The proposed project is consistent with the applicable Light Industrial land use 
district of the City of Ontario Development Code. The proposed project occurs within city 
limits and is no more than five acres and is substantially surrounded by urban uses. The 
project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 
Additionally, approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality and the site is adequately served by all required utilities and public 
services; and 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the DAB. 

SECTION 2: Based upon the substantial evidence presented to the DAB during 
the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, 
the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 

(1) The Project is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to location
of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has 
been designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code 
and the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular 
land use proposed (industrial building), as well as building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and 
off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 

(2) The Project will complement and/or improve upon the quality of existing
development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to 
protect the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed 
project. The proposed location of the Project, and the proposed conditions under which it 
will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the Policy Plan component of The 
Ontario Plan and the City’s Development Plan, and, therefore, will not be detrimental to 
the public health, safety, and general welfare; and 

(3) The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on the environment.
The project has been designed to minimize visual impacts to the surround area. As a 

Item B - 3 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-4-

result, the project has been categorically exempt from further environmental review, 
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, and therefore will not have any significant negative impacts on the 
environment; and 

(4) The Project is consistent with the development standards set forth in the
Development Code or applicable Specific Plan. The proposed project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the development standards contained in the City of Ontario 
Development Code, which are applicable to the Project, including those related to the 
particular land use being proposed (industrial building), as well as building intensity, 
building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls. As a result of such review, staff has found the project, 
when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, to be consistent with 
the applicable Development Code requirements; and 

(5) The Project is consistent with the design guidelines set forth in the
Development Code or applicable Specific Plan. The proposed project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the design guidelines contained in the City of Ontario Development 
Code, which are applicable to the Project, including those guidelines relative to walls and 
fencing; lighting; streetscapes and walkways; parks and plazas; paving, plants and 
furnishings; on-site landscaping; and building design. As a result of such review, staff has 
found the project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, to be 
consistent with the applicable Development Code design guidelines. 

SECTION 3: Based upon the findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 and 
2 above, the DAB hereby approves the Application subject to each and every condition 
set forth in the Department reports, included as Attachment “A” of this Decision, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

SECTION 4: The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or 
proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant 
of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in 
the defense. 

SECTION 5: The documents and materials that constitute the record of 
proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario 
City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records 
is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Item B - 4 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-5-

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 5th day of December 2016. 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item B - 5 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-6-

Exhibit A: Project Location Map 

Item B - 6 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 
 

-7- 

Exhibit B: Site Plan 
 

 
  

N 

Item B - 7 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-8-

Exhibit C: Elevations 

Item B - 8 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-9-

Exhibit C: Elevations (continued) 

Item B - 9 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-10-

Exhibit C: Elevations (continued) 

Item B - 10 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-11-

Exhibit D: Landscape Plan 

N

Item B - 11 of 26



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV15-024 
December 5, 2016 

-12-

Attachment “A” 

FILE NO. PDEV15-024 
DEPARTMENTAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 

Item B - 12 of 26



Meeting Date: December 5, 2016 

File No: PDEV15-024 

Related Files: 

Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a 1,050 SF industrial building on a 0.13-acre 
parcel of land generally located at the southeast corner of State Street and Sultana Avenue, within the IL 
(Light Industrial) zoning district (APN: 1049-231-04); submitted by Secured Income Group, Inc. 

Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 
Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2010-021 on March 16, 2010. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 

2.1 Time Limits. 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Section 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 13 of 26



Planning Department; Land Development Section: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV15-024 
Page 2 of 4 

2.3 Landscaping. 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Section. 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Section. 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Section, prior to the commencement of 
the changes. 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure
facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas. 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 

Item B - 14 of 26



Planning Department; Land Development Section: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV15-024 
Page 3 of 4 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of 
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are view-
obstructing by one of the following methods: 

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside of the
gate surface (50 percent screen); or 

(ii) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets spaced
at maximum 2-inches apart.

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established based
upon the corresponding wall height, as follows: 

Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height 

14 feet: 10 feet 

12 feet: 9 feet 

10 feet: 8 feet 

8 feet: 8 feet 

6 feet: 6 feet 

2.7 Site Lighting. 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell
switch.

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 

2.10 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 

Item B - 15 of 26



Planning Department; Land Development Section: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV15-024 
Page 4 of 4 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 

2.12 Environmental Review. 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
meeting the following conditions: 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no
more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and
public services. 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 

2.14 Additional Fees. 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

Item B - 16 of 26



Item B - 17 of 26



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone A Zone B1 Zone C Zone D Zone E

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Form Updated: 11/14/2014

PDEV15-024 & PVAR15-005

524 E State Street

1049-231-04

Single Family Residential

1,050 industrial building to be used for storage

0.13

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

8/28/15

2015-036

n/a

15'

74'

Item B - 18 of 26



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764

PRELIMINARY PLAN CORRECTIONS 
Sign Off 

11/10/16 
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237

D.A.B. File No.:
PDEV15-024 Rev 2

Case Planner: 

Jeanie Aguilo 
Project Name and Location: 
Proposed Metal Building 
524 E State Street 
Applicant/Representative: 
Gonzalo Herrera 
245 N. Country Club Road 
Glendora, CA 91741 
 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (received 10/18/16) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated       ) has not been approved. 
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED

Grading plan 
1. Show engineered soil for the entire basin area. Remove 2” of mulch. Revise engineered soil mix to

match City Engineering standard 65% sand, 20% silt- clay and 15% compost per volume.
2. Show basin top of slope edge set back min 4’ from walls, fences or paving.
3. Show catch basin and pipeline for water flow from landscape area across parking spaces. Or

grade to flow into landscape area with curb cuts and ungrouted rip rap per engineering
requirements.

4. Note on grading plans for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas, note all
finished grades at 1 ½” below finished surfaces, note for slopes to be maximum 3:1.

5. Show backflow devices on site behind the sidewalk screened with 36” high strappy leaf shrubs.
6. Show transformers on plan screened with 5’ of landscape.
7. Show water and sewer lines outside of required tree locations. Show on plan.

Landscape Plans 
8. Add vine pockets min 18” x12” along block wall from State Street.
9. Change aggressive Cat’s claw vine to a lower maintenance vine such as Boston ivy or Ficus

repens or alternate each.
10. Change root watering system to pop up stream spray bubblers to adequately cover root system.
11. Show water quality infiltration area to match civil plan and show appropriate landscape to tolerate

saturated soils and drought conditions such as Carex or City Standard or other bioswale
hydroseed mix.

Item B - 19 of 26



Item B - 20 of 26



Item B - 21 of 26



CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Jeannie Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Planning Department 

FROM: Adam A. Panos, Fire Protection Analyst 

Fire Department 

DATE: July 29, 2015 

SUBJECT: PDEV15-024 / A Development Plan to construct a 1,050 SF metal system 

building on 0.13 acres, generally located on the southeast corner of State 

Street and Sultana Ave, within the M3 (General Industrial) zone. APN: 

1049-231-04 RELATED FILE: PVAR15-005 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time. 

   No comments. 

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

   The plan does NOT adequately address Fire Department requirements. 

   The comments contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling 

for Development Advisory Board. 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

A. Type of Building Construction Used:  II B – Metal, non-rated

B. Roof Materials Used:  Metal, Non rated

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  1,050 sq. ft.

D. Number of Stories:  1 story

E. Total Square Footage:   1,050 sq. ft.

F. Type of Occupancy:  Group S, Div 2

Item B - 22 of 26



2 of 5  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1.0 GENERAL 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 

current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 

applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 

that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 

For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site 

at www.ci.ontario.ca.us, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings. 

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 

the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 

shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty (20) ft. wide. 

See Standard #B-004.   

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length 

shall have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.  

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 

properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be in-

stalled in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 

minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and 

H-001.

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2013 California Fire 

Code, Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 

pounds per square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

Item B - 23 of 26



3 of 5  

  3.2 Off-site street fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 

  3.3 Buildings that exceed 100,000 square feet in floor area shall provide an onsite looped fire 

protection water line around the building(s.) The loops shall be required to have two or more 

points of connection from a public circulating water main. 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and 

approved by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible 

construction to assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

  4.1 On-site private fire hydrants are required per Standard #D-005, and identified in accordance 

with Standard #D-002.  Installation and locations(s) are subject to the approval of the Fire 

Department. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit 

shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done.    

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 

properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. 
The shared use of private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately 

adjacent properties and shall not cross any public street. 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance 

with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13R. All new fire sprinkler 

systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads 

or more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along 

with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 

Department, prior to any work being done.   

  4.4 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building 

within one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  

Provide identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per 

Standard #D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted 

red, five feet either side, per City standards. 

  4.5 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall 

be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any 

work being done.  

  4.6 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-

001. Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and

placement required.

  4.7 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and 

cooking surfaces.  This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association 

Item B - 24 of 26



4 of 5  

(NFPA) Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a 

construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done. 

  4.8 Hose valves with two and one half inch (2 ½”) connections will be required on the roof, in 

locations acceptable to the Fire Department. These hose valves shall be take their water 

supply from the automatic fire sprinkler systems, and shall be included in the design 

submitted for these systems. Identification shall be provided for all hose valves per Standard 

#D-004. 

  4.9 Due to inaccessible rail spur areas, two and one half inch 2-1/2” fire hose connections shall 

be provided in these areas. These hose valves shall be take their water supply from the 

automatic fire sprinkler systems, and shall be included in the design submitted for these 

systems. Identification shall be provided for all hose valves per Standard #D-004. 

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 

debris both on and off the site. 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  

Multi-tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the 

rear of the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-

1.3280 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 

California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

  5.4 Multiple unit building complexes shall have building directories provided at the main 

entrances.  The directories shall be designed to the requirements of the Fire Department, see 

Section 9-1.3280 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standard #H-003. 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See 

Standard #H-001 for specific requirements. 

  5.7  Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle 

hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the 

requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704. 

  5.8 The building shall be provided with a Public Safety 800 MHZ radio amplification system per 

the Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.09 (n) and the CFC. The design and installation 

shall be approved by the Fire Department.  

Item B - 25 of 26



5 of 5  

6.0 SPECIAL USES 

  6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the 

Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If hazardous 

materials are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, 

including Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted 

with Material Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction 

plans. 

  6.2 Any High Piled Storage, or storage of combustible materials greater than twelve (12’) feet in 

height for ordinary (Class I-IV) commodities or storage greater than six feet (6’) in height of 

high hazard (Group A plastics, rubber tires, flammable liquids, etc.) shall be approved by the 

Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If High Piled 

Storage is proposed, a Fire Department High Piled Storage Worksheet shall be completed 

and detailed racking plans or floor plans submitted prior to occupancy of the building. 

  6.3 Underground fuel tanks, their associated piping and dispensers shall be reviewed, approved, 

and permitted by Ontario Building Department, Ontario Fire Department, and San 

Bernardino County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division.  In fueling facilities, an 

exterior emergency pump shut-off switch shall be provided. 

7.0 OTHER PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS 

NONE. 

<END.> 

Item B - 26 of 26



-1-

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION 
December 5, 2016 

DECISION NO: [insert #]  

FILE NO: PDEV14-040 

DESCRIPTION: A Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Program 
for a Development Plan (File No. PDEV14-040) for the construction of a five story, 68-
unit residential apartment complex on 1.98 acres of land, located along the southwest 
corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, within the High Density Residential 
(HDR-45) zoning district.  APN: 1011-381-04; submitted by Mission Pams 
Investments, LLC.  

PART I: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

MISSION PAMS INVESTMENTS, LLC., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) 
has filed an application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV14-040, as 
described in the Description of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or 
"Project"). 

(a) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 1.98 acres of land located
at the southwest corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue. Existing land uses, 
General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding 
the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan Designation Zoning Designation 
Specific 

Plan Land 
Use 

Site Vacant High Density Residential (25.1 – 
45 du/ac) 

HDR-45 

(High Density Residential -25.1 to 45 
du/ac) 

n/a 

North Service Station and Vacant 
Retail Store 

Business Park 

  (0.6 FAR) 

IL 

(Light Industrial) 

n/a 

South Single Family Home 
Medium Density Residential 

( 11.1 – 25 du/ac) 

MDR-18 

(Medium Density Residential - 

 11.1 to 18 du/ac) 

n/a 

East Retail Center Neighborhood Commercial (0.4 
FAR) 

CN 

(Neighborhood Commercial – 0.4 
Max. FAR)  

n/a 

West Motel High Density Residential (25.1 – 
45 du/ac) 

HDR-45 

(High Density Residential -25.1 to 45 
du/ac) 

n/a 

Item C - 1 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-2- 

(b) Project Description: The Project analyzed under the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (included as Exhibit E: Mitigated Negative Declaration, attached) consists of 
a Development Plan (File No. PDEV14-040) that proposes to develop a five story (61-
foot tall), 68-unit residential apartment complex (Villa Palmetto) within a 1.98 acres site. 
Staff has worked with the applicant to design a project that reflects the goals and 
requirements of the High Density Residential-45 land use designation and those of the 
TOP (The Ontario Plan).  The project has also been designed with the objective of 
creating a safe and attractive, site design that carries throughout the project. The front of 
the buildings will face a public street. Parking has been conveniently and carefully situated 
in the form of tuck-under carports, free-standing carports and surface parking. 
Landscaping and decorative paving have also been provided throughout the project to 
enhance the appeal and create a sense of place. 
 

PART II: RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of this Resolution, the Planning Director of the 
City of Ontario prepared an Initial Study, and approved for circulation, a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for File No. PDEV14-040 (hereinafter referred to as “Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration”), all in accordance with the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970, together with state and local guidelines 
implementing said Act, all as amended to date (collectively referred to as “CEQA”); and 
 

WHEREAS, File No. PDEV14-040 analyzed under the Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, consists of a Development Plan for the construction of a five-story, 
68-unit residential apartment complex on 1.98 acres of land, located along the southwest 
corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, within the High Density Residential 
(HDR-45) zoning district, in the City of Ontario, California (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Project"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration concluded that 
implementation of the Project could result in a number of significant effects on the 
environment and identified mitigation measures that would reduce each of those 
significant effects to a less-than-significant level; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the approval of a project involving the preparation 
of an initial study/mitigated negative declaration that identifies one or more significant 
environmental effects, CEQA requires the approving authority of the lead agency to 
incorporate feasible mitigation measures that would reduce those significant environment 
effects to a less-than-significant level; and 
 

WHEREAS, whenever a lead agency approves a project requiring the 
implementation of measures to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment, 
CEQA also requires a lead agency to adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program to ensure compliance with the mitigation measures during project 
implementation, and such a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program has been 

Item C - 2 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-3- 

prepared for the Project for consideration by the approving authority of the City of Ontario 
as lead agency for the Project (the “Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario is the lead agency on the Project, and the 
Development Advisory Board is the approving authority for the proposed approval to 
construct and otherwise undertake the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Development Advisory Board has reviewed and considered the 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and related Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program for the Project, and intends to take actions on the Project in 
compliance with CEQA and state and local guidelines implementing CEQA; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and related Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Project are on file in the Planning Department, 
located at 303 East B Street, Ontario, CA 91764, are available for inspection by any 
interested person at that location and are, by this reference, incorporated into this 
Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
 

PART III: THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: As the approving authority for the Project, the Development Advisory 
Board has reviewed and considered the information contained in the Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and the administrative record for the Project, 
including all written and oral evidence provided during the comment period. Based upon 
the facts and information contained in the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and 
the administrative record, including all written and oral evidence presented to the 
Development Advisory Board, the Development Advisory Board finds as follows: 
 

(1) The Development Advisory Board has independently reviewed and 
analyzed the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and other information in the 
record, and has considered the information contained therein, prior to acting upon or 
approving the Project; 

 
(2) The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Project 

has been completed in compliance with CEQA and is consistent with State and local 
guidelines implementing CEQA; and 

 
(3) The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration represents the 

independent judgment and analysis of the City of Ontario, as lead agency for the Project. 
The City Council designates the Planning Department, located at 303 East B Street, 
Ontario, CA 91764, as the custodian of documents and records of proceedings on which 
this decision is based. 

Item C - 3 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-4- 

SECTION 2: The Development Advisory Board does hereby find that based upon 
the entire record of proceedings before it, and all information received, that there is no 
substantial evidence that the Project will have a significant effect on the environment and 
does hereby recommends the Planning Commission adopt the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and related Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program prepared for the 
Project. 
 

SECTION 3: The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or 
proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul this action of the Development Advisory Board. The City of Ontario 
shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City 
of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 4: The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program, and all other documents and materials that constitute 
the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based, are on file at the City 
of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for 
these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. The records are available for 
inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of December 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 
 
 

  

Item C - 4 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-5- 

Attachment A:  Aerial Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Project 
Site 

MISSION  M 
O 
U 
N 
T 
A 
I 
N 
  

P
A
L
M
E
T
T
O 
  
A
V
E 

Item C - 5 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-6- 

 
Attachment B:  Site Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Building 

Item C - 6 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-7- 

 
Attachment C:  Perspectives of Villa Palmetto Apartments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Item C - 7 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-8- 

 
 

Attachment D:  Perspectives of Villa Palmetto Apartments 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Item C - 8 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 

-9-

Attachment E:   
Mitigated Negative Declaration 

(Environmental Checklist Form, and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program) 

Item C - 9 of 92



Page 1 of 36 

 
California Environmental Quality Act 
Environmental Checklist Form 
 
 

Project Title/File No.: Villa Palmetto Apartments/File No. PDEV14-040 

Lead Agency: City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036 

Contact Person: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner (909) 395-2431 

Project Sponsor: Mrs. Linda Lui, 1401 S. Fourth Avenue, Arcadia, CA. 91006 

Project Location: The project site is located in southwestern San Bernardino County, within the City of 
Ontario.  The City of Ontario is located approximately 40 miles from downtown Los Angeles, 20 miles from 
downtown San Bernardino, and 30 miles from Orange County. As illustrated on Figures 1 through 3, below, 
the project site is located along the southwest corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue (APN: 
1011-382-04). 

 

Figure 1—REGIONAL LOCATION MAP  

 
 

  

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 

303 East “B” Street 
Ontario, California 

Phone: (909) 395-2036 
Fax: (909) 395-2420  

 

PROJECT SITE 

Item C - 10 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 2 of 36 

Figure 2—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3—SITE PLAN 
 
 
  

Project 
Site 

MISSION  M 
O 
U 
N 
T 
A 
I 
N 
  

P
A
L
M
E
T
T
O 
 
A
V
E 

Item C - 11 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 3 of 36 

Figure 3–SITE PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Building 

Item C - 12 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 4 of 36 

General Plan Designation: High Density Residential (HDR) 

Zoning: HDR 45 

Description of Project: A Development Plan to construct a five-story, 68-unit residential apartment 
complex (Villa Palmetto Apartments) at the southwest corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, 
on 1.98 acres of land, located within the HDR-45 zoning district. 

 

Project Setting: The site is currently vacant and is secured with chain link fencing. The site has several 
mature trees along Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue. 

Surrounding Land Uses: 

 Zoning Current Land Use 

 North— IL (Light Industrial)  Service Station & Vacant retail store 

 South— MDR 18 (Medium Density Residential 18) Single Family Home 

 East— CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Retail Center 

 West— HDR45 Best Ontario Inn Motel 

Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval or participation 
agreement): None 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least 
one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. 

 Aesthetics  Agriculture Resources 

 Air Quality  Biological Resources 

 Cultural Resources  Geology / Soils 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  Hazards & Hazardous Materials 

 Hydrology / Water Quality  Land Use / Planning 

 Population / Housing  Mineral Resources 

 Noise  Public Services 

 Recreation  Transportation / Traffic 

 Utilities / Service Systems  Mandatory Findings of Significance 

 

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency): 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

 I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there 
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or 
agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

Item C - 13 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 5 of 36 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant"  or "potentially significant unless 
mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in 
an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by 
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets.  An 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain 
to be addressed. 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because 
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant 
to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that 
are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

 
 
 
 
  November 8, 2016  
Signature Date 
 
Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner  City of Ontario Planning Department  
Printed Name and Title For 

 

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 

1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately 
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question.  
A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the 
impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault 
rupture zone).  A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors 
as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based 
on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, 
cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational 
impacts. 

3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist 
answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, 
or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence 
that an effect is significant.  If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the 
determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4) "Negative Declaration:  Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the 
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a 
"Less than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly 
explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from the "Earlier 
Analyses” Section may be cross-referenced). 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an 
effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration.  Section 15063(c)(3)(D). 
In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 

a) Earlier Analyses Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the 
scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, 

Item C - 14 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 6 of 36 

and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier 
analysis. 

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures 
Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier 
document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for 
potential impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances).  Reference to a previously prepared or 
outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the 
statement is substantiated. 

7) Supporting Information Sources.  A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead 
agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's 
environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a) The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

1) AESTHETICS. Would the project:     
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?     
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not 

limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings 
within a state scenic highway? 

    

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of the site and its surroundings? 

    

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which 
would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area? 

    

2) AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In determining 
whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant 
environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the 
California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment 
Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of 
Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts 
on agriculture and farmland.  In determining whether impacts 
to forest resources, including timberland, are significant 
environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information 
compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, 
including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the 
Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon 
measurement methodology provided in Forest protocols 
adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the 
project: 

    

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland 
of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the 
maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, 
to non-agricultural use? 

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a 
Williamson Act contract? 

    

Item C - 15 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 7 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, 
forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 
12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources 
Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by Government Code section 
51104(g))? 

    

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest 
land to non-forest use? 

    

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, 
due to their location or nature, could result in conversion 
of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of 
forest land to non-forest use? 

    

3) AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria 
established by the applicable air quality management or air 
pollution control district may be relied upon to make the 
following determinations.  Would the project: 

    

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable 
air quality plan? 

    

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially 
to an existing or projected air quality violation? 

    

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the project region is 
nonattainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for 
ozone precursors)? 

    

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

    

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial 
number of people? 

    

4) BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     
a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or 

through habitat modifications, on any species identified 
as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in 
local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat 
or other sensitive natural community identified in local or 
regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected 
wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water 
Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, 
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other means? 

    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with 
established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, 
or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? 

    

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting 
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

    

Item C - 16 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 8 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation 
Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

    

5) CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:     
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance 

of a historical resource as defined in California Code of 
Regulations Section 15064.5? 

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance 
of an archaeological resource pursuant to California 
Code of Regulations Section 15064.5? 

    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique geologic feature? 

    

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred 
outside of formal cemeteries? 

    

e) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance 
of a Tribal Cultural Resource as defined in Public 
Resources Code Section 21074? 

    

6) GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:     
a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial 

adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death 
involving: 

    

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated 
on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 
Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the 
area or based on other substantial evidence of a 
known fault?  Refer to Division of Mines and 
Geology Special Publication 42. 

    

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     
iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 

liquefaction? 
    

iv) Landslides?     
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?     
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or 

that would become unstable as a result of the project, and 
potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18 1 B 
of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial 
risks to life or property? 

    

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of 
septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste 
water? 

    

7) GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:     
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or 

indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the 
environment? 

    

Item C - 17 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 9 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation 
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emission of 
greenhouse gases? 

    

8) HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the 
project: 

    

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

    

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and 
accident conditions involving the release of hazardous 
materials into the environment? 

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or 
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within 
one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

    

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of 
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code section 65962.5 and, as a result, 
would it create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

    

e) For a project located within the safety zone of the airport 
land use compatibility plan for ONT or Chino Airports, 
would the project result in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project area? 

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would 
the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or 
working in the project area? 

    

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an 
adopted emergency response plan or emergency 
evacuation plan? 

    

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving wildland fires, including where 
wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where 
residences are intermixed with wildlands? 

    

9) HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY.  Would the project:     
a) Violate any other water quality standards or waste 

discharge requirements or potential for discharge of 
storm water pollutants from areas of material storage, 
vehicle or equipment fueling, vehicle or equipment 
maintenance (including washing), waste handling, 
hazardous materials handling or storage, delivery areas 
or loading docks, or other outdoor work areas?  

    

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere 
substantially with groundwater recharge such that there 
would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of 
the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate 
of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which 
would not support existing land uses or planned uses for 
which permits have been granted)?  

    

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site 
or area, including through the alteration of the course of 
a stream or river, in a manner which would result in 
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site or volume of 
storm water runoff to cause environmental harm or 
potential for significant increase in erosion of the project 
site or surrounding areas? 

    

Item C - 18 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 10 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site 
or area, including through the alteration of the course of 
a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result 
in flooding on- or off-site or potential for significant 
changes in the flow velocity or volume of storm water 
runoff to cause environmental harm? 

    

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the 
capacity of existing or planned storm water drainage 
systems or provide substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff during construction and/or post-
construction activity? 

    

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality or potential 
for discharge of storm water to affect the beneficial uses 
of receiving water? 

    

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as 
mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood 
Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation 
map? 

    

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures 
which would impede or redirect flood flows? 

    

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving flooding, including flooding as a 
result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

    

j) Expose people or structures to inundation by seiche, 
tsunami, or mudflow? 

    

10) LAND USE AND PLANNING.  Would the project:     
a) Physically divide an established community?     
b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or 

regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project 
(including, but not  limited to the general plan, airport land 
use compatibility plan, specific plan, local coastal 
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of 
avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 

    

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or 
natural community conservation plan? 

    

11) MINERAL RESOURCES.  Would the project:     
a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral 

resource that would be of value to the region and the 
residents of the state? 

    

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important 
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

    

12) NOISE.  Would the project result in:     
a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in 

excess of standards established in the local general plan 
or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other 
agencies? 

    

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive 
ground borne vibration or ground borne noise levels? 

    

Item C - 19 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 

Page 11 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels 
in the project vicinity above levels existing without the
project?

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing
without the project?

e) For a project located within the noise impact zones of the
airport land use compatibility plan for ONT and Chino
Airports, would the project expose people residing or
working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would
the project expose people residing or working in the
project area to excessive noise levels?

13) POPULATION AND HOUSING.  Would the project:

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either
directly (for example, by proposing new homes and
businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension
of road or other infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing,
necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

14) PUBLIC SERVICES.  Would the project:

a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated 
with the provision of new or physically altered
governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of which could
cause significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or
other performance objectives for any of the public
services:

i) Fire protection?

ii) Police protection?

iii) Schools?

iv) Parks?

v) Other public facilities?

15) RECREATION.  Would the project:

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional
parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial
physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be
accelerated?

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require
the construction or expansion of recreational facilities
which have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

16) TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC.  Would the project:

Item C - 20 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 12 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy 
establishing measures of effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation system, taking into account 
all modes of transportation including mass transit and 
non-motorized travel and relevant components of the 
circulation system, including but not limited to 
intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian 
and bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

    

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management 
program, including, but not limited to, level of service 
standards and travel demand measures, or other 
standards established by the county congestion 
management agency for designated roads or highways? 

    

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either 
an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that 
results in substantial safety risks? 

    

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature 
(e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

    

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?     
f) Result in inadequate parking capacity?     
g) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs 

regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or 
otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such 
facilities? 

    

17) UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS.  Would the project:     
a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the 

applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board? 
    

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

    

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water 
drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

    

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the 
project from existing entitlements and resources, or are 
new or expanded entitlements needed?  In making this 
determination, the City shall consider whether the project 
is subject to the water supply assessment requirements 
of Water Code Section 10910, et seq. (SB 610), and the 
requirements of Government Code Section 664737 (SB 
221). 

    

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment 
provider which serves or may serve the project that it has 
adequate capacity to serve the project's projected 
demand in addition to the provider's existing 
commitments? 

    

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity 
to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal 
needs? 

    

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

    

Item C - 21 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 13 of 36 

Issues Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

18) MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE     
a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality 

of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a 
fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population 
to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate 
a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the 
number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant 
or animal or eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory? 

    

b) Does the project have the potential to achieve short-term 
environmental goals to the disadvantage of long-term 
environmental goals? 

    

c) Does the project have impacts that are individually 
limited, but cumulatively considerable?  ("Cumulatively 
considerable" means that the incremental effects of a 
project are considerable when viewed in connection with 
the effects of past projects, the effects of other current 
project, and the effects of probable future projects.) 

    

d) Does the project have environmental effects which will 
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, 
either directly or indirectly? 

    

Note:  Authority cited:  Sections 21083, 21083.05, Public Resources Code.  Reference: Section 65088.4, Gov. Code; Sections 
21080, 21083.05, 21095, Pub. Resources Code; Eureka Citizens for Responsible Govt. v. City of Eureka (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th 
357; Protect the Historic Amador Waterways v. Amador Water Agency (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th at 1109; San Franciscans Upholding 
the Downtown Plan v. City and County of San Francisco (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 656. 

 

EXPLANATION OF ISSUES 

1) AESTHETICS. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

Discussion of Effects: The Policy Plan (General Plan) does not identify scenic vistas within the City. 
However, the Policy Plan (Policy CD1-5) requires all major require north-south streets be designed 
and redeveloped to feature views of the San Gabriel Mountain.  The project site is not located on 
a major north-south street as identified in the Functional Roadway Classification Plan (Figure M-2) 
of the Mobility Element within the Policy Plan. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated in 
relation to the project. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, tress, rock 
outcroppings and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario is served by three freeways: I-10, I-15, and SR-60. I-10 
and SR-60 traverse the northern and central portion of the City, respectively, in an east–west 
direction. I-15 traverses the northeastern portion of the City in a north–south direction. These 
segments of I-10, I-15, and SR-60 have not been officially designated as scenic highways by the 
California Department of Transportation.  In addition, there are no historic buildings or any scenic 
resources identified on or in the vicinity of the project site. Therefore, it will not result in adverse 
environmental impacts. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

Item C - 22 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 14 of 36 

Discussion of Effects: The project would not degrade the existing visual character or quality of the 
site or its surroundings. The project site is located in an area that is characterized by multi-family 
residential development, commercial and industrial urban land uses. 

The proposed project will substantially improve the visual quality of the area through development 
of the site with a 68 unit residential apartment complex, which will be consistent with the policies of 
the Community Design Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) and zoning designations on the 
property. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

Discussion of Effects: New lighting will be introduced to the site with the development of the project. 
Pursuant to the requirements of the City’s Development Code, project on-site lighting will be 
shielded, diffused or indirect, to avoid glare to pedestrians or motorists. In addition, lighting fixtures 
will be selected and located to confine the area of illumination to within the project site and minimize 
light spillage. 

Site lighting plans will be subject to review by the Planning and Police Departments prior to 
issuance of building permits (pursuant to the City’s Building Security Ordinance). Therefore, no 
adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

2) AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In determining whether impacts to agricultural 
resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural 
Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model prepared by the California Department of Conservation 
as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland.  In determining whether 
impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies 
may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and 
the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in 
Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is currently vacant and undeveloped. The site does not contain any 
agricultural uses. Further, the site is identified as Urban and Built-Up Land on the map prepared by 
the California Resources Agency, pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program. As 
a result, no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not zoned for agricultural use. The projects site zone is 
High Density Residential (HDR-45). The proposed project is consistent with the development 
standards and allowed land uses of the proposed zone. Furthermore, there is no Williamson Act 
contracts in effect on the subject site. Therefore, no impacts to agricultural uses are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code 
section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code 
section 51104(g)? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is zoned High Density Residential (HDR-45). The proposed 
project is consistent with the Land Use Element (Figure LU-6) of the Policy Plan (General Plan) 
and the development standards and allowed land uses of the High Density Residential (HDR-45) 

Item C - 23 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 15 of 36 

zone. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

Discussion of Effects: There is currently no land in the City of Ontario that qualifies as forest land 
as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g). Neither the Ontario Plan nor the City’s 
Zoning Code provide designations for forest land.  Consequently, the proposed project would not 
result in the loss or conversion of forest land. 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment, which, due to their location or nature, 
could individually or cumulatively result in loss of Farmland to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

Discussion of Effects:  The project site is currently zoned High Density Residential (HDR-45) and 
is not designated as Farmland.  The project site is vacant and there are no agricultural uses 
occurring onsite.  As a result, to the extent that the project would result in changes to the existing 
environment, those changes would not result in loss of Farmland to non-agricultural use. 

Additionally, there is currently no land in the City of Ontario that qualifies as forest land as defined 
in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g). Neither the Ontario Plan nor the City’s Zoning Code 
provide designations for forest land. Consequently, to the extent that the proposed project would 
result in changes to the existing environment, those changes would not impact forest land. 

Mitigation Required:  None required. 

3) AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality 
management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. 
Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will not conflict with or obstruct implementation of any air quality 
plan. As noted in The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.3), pollutant levels in the Ontario area already 
exceed Federal and State standards. To reduce pollutant levels, the City of Ontario is actively 
participating in efforts to enhance air quality by implementing Control Measures in the Air Quality 
Management Plan for local jurisdictions within the South Coast Air Basin. 

The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan, for which the EIR was prepared and 
impacts evaluated. Furthermore, the project is consistent with the City's participation in the Air 
Quality Management Plan and, because of the project's limited size and scope, will not conflict with 
or obstruct implementation of the plan.  

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation? 

Discussion of Effects: Short term air quality impacts will result from construction related activities 
associated with construction activity, such as excavation and grading, machinery and equipment 
emissions, vehicle emissions from construction employees, etc. The daily emissions of nitrogen 
oxides and particulates from resulting grading and vehicular emissions may exceed threshold levels 
of the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). 

Mitigation: The following fugitive dust mitigation measures shall be required: 

i) Use of dust control during clearing, grading and construction. Fugitive dust generated during 
cleaning, grading, earth moving or excavation shall be controlled by regular watering, paving 
of construction roads, or other dust-preventative measures. If freshwater resources are too 
precious to waste on dust control, availability of brackish or reclaimed water sources shall be 
investigated. Soil disturbance shall be terminated when high winds (25 mph or greater) make 
dust control extremely difficult. 

Item C - 24 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 16 of 36 

ii) Minimization of construction interference with regional non-project traffic movement. Impacts 
shall be reduced to below a level of significance by the following mitigation measures: 

(1) Scheduling receipt of construction materials to non-peak travel periods. 

(2) Routing construction traffic through areas of least impact sensitivity. 

(3) Limiting lane closures and detours to off-peak travel periods. 

(4) Providing rideshare incentives for contractor and subcontractor personnel. 

iii) After clearing, grading or earth moving: 

(1) Seed and water until plant cover is established; 

(2) Spread soil binders; 

(3) Form and maintain a crust on the surface through repeated soaking that will prevent dust 
pickup by wind; and 

(4) Reduce “spill-over” effects by washing vehicles entering public roadways from dirt off road 
project areas, and washing/sweeping project access to public roadways on an adequate 
schedule. 

iv) Emissions control from on-site equipment through a routine, mandatory program of low-
emission tune-ups. 

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions that exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the region is in non-attainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality because of the limited size and scope of the project. Although no impacts are 
anticipated, the project will still comply with the air quality standards of the TOP FEIR and the 
SCAQMD resulting in impacts that are less than significant [please refer to Sections 3(a) and 3(b)]. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Discussion of Effects: Sensitive receptors are defined as populations that are more susceptible to 
the effects of pollution than the population at large. The SCAQMD identifies the following as 
sensitive receptors: long-term health care facilities, rehabilitation centers, convalescent centers, 
retirement homes, residences, schools, playgrounds, child care centers, and athletic facilities. 
According to the SCAQMD, projects have the potential to create significant impacts if they are 
located within one-quarter mile of sensitive receptors and would emit toxic air contaminants 
identified in SCAQMD Rule 1401. 

The application itself proposes the construction of a 68-unit residential apartment complex, a 
sensitive receptor. There are not, however, any known hot spots or heavy concentrations of 
pollutants in the area that would expose residents to potential adverse impacts. In addition, the 
surrounding area is also currently developed with multi-family residential developments. Therefore, 
no impacts are anticipated as the propose use is similar.  

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?  

Discussion of Effects: The uses proposed on the subject site, as well as those permitted within the 
High Density Residential (HDR-45) zoning district, do not create objectionable odors. Further, the 
project shall comply with the policies of the Ontario Municipal Code and the Policy Plan (General 
Plan). Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

Item C - 25 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 17 of 36 

4) BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is located within an area that has not been identified as 
containing species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional 
plans, policies or regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Game or the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

Discussion of Effects: The site does not contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified by the Department of Fish & Game or Fish & Wildlife Service. The project site 
is not located within an area that has been identified by Fish & Game or Fish & Wildlife Service as 
having sensitive natural communities. The site has been vacant for many years and during these 
years the site has been regularly cleared and disked to remove overgrown vegetation. Therefore, 
no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 
of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

Discussion of Effects: No wetland habitat is present on site. Therefore, project implementation 
would have no impact on these resources. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the 
use of native wildlife nursery sites? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is bounded on all four sides by existing development. As a result, 
there are no wildlife corridors connecting this site to other areas. Therefore, no adverse 
environmental impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario does not have any ordinances protecting biological 
resources. As a result, no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP), Natural 
Community Conservation Plan (NCCP), or other approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is not part of an adopted HCP, NCCP or other approved habitat 
conservation plan. As a result, no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

5) CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

Item C - 26 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 18 of 36 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined 
in Section 15064.5? 

Discussion of Effects:  

The City of Ontario has a very aggressive historical preservation program. However, the site is 
vacant. Also, the project site has not been identified as a “Historic Resource” per the standards of 
Ordinance No. 2509 (Historic Preservation).  Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to Section 15064.5? 

Discussion of Effects: The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.5) indicates no archeological sites or 
resources have been recorded in the City with the Archeological Information Center at San 
Bernardino County Museum. However, only about 10 percent of the City of Ontario has been 
adequately surveyed for prehistoric or historic archaeology. While no adverse impacts to 
archeological resources are anticipated at this site due to its urbanized nature, standard conditions 
have been imposed on the project that in the event of unanticipated archeological discoveries, 
construction activities will not continue or will moved to other parts of the project site and a qualified 
archaeologist shall be contacted to determine significance of these resources. If the find is 
discovered to be historical or unique archaeological resources, as defined in Section 15064.5 of 
the CEQA Guidelines, avoidance or other appropriate measures shall be implemented. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic 
feature? 

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario is underlain by deposits of Quaternary and Upper-
Pleistocene sediments deposited during the Pliocene and early Pleistocene time, Quaternary Older 
Alluvial sediments may contain significant, nonrenewable, paleontological resources and are, 
therefore, considered to have high sensitivity at depths of 10 feet or more below ground surface. In 
addition, the Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.5) indicates that one paleontological resource has been 
discovered in the City. However, the project proposes excavation depths to be less than 10 feet. 
While no adverse impacts are anticipated, standard conditions have been imposed on the project 
that in the event of unanticipated paleontological resources are identified during excavation, 
construction activities will not continue or will moved to other parts of the project site and a qualified 
paleontologist  shall be contacted to determine significance of these resources.  If the find is 
determined to be significant, avoidance or other appropriate measures shall be implemented. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is in an area that has been previously disturbed by 
development. No known religious or sacred sites exist within the project area.  Thus, human 
remains are not expected to be encountered during any construction activities.  However, in the 
unlikely event that human remains are discovered, existing regulations, including the California 
Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, would afford protection for human remains discovered 
during development activities. Furthermore, standard conditions have been imposed on the project 
that in the event of unanticipated discoveries of human remains are identified during excavation, 
construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed 
by the County Coroner and/or Native American consultation has been completed, if deemed 
applicable.  

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a Tribal Cultural Resource as 
defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074? 

Discussion of Effects: The 1.98 acres site has been vacant for several years. In addition, the site 

Item C - 27 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 19 of 36 

has been highly disturbed to clear overgrown vegetation by disking. During this time, no known 
Tribal Cultural Resources have been identified within the project site. Furthermore, staff requested 
consultation with the Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians, and staff was informed that it was 
acceptable to move forward with the proposed project. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

6) GEOLOGY & SOILS. Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 
loss, injury or death involving: 

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology 
Special Publication 42. 

Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located 
outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Ontario Plan FEIR 
(Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight active or potentially active fault zones near the City. 
Given that the closest fault zone is located more than ten miles from the project site, fault 
rupture within the project area is not likely. All development will comply with the Uniform 
Building Code seismic design standards to reduce geologic hazard susceptibility. Therefore, 
no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? 

Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located 
outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Land Use Plan 
(Figure LU-6) of the Policy Plan (General Plan) FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight 
active or potentially active fault zones near the City. The closest fault zone is located more than 
ten miles from the project site. The proximity of the site to the active faults will result in ground 
shaking during moderate to severe seismic events. All construction will be in compliance with 
the California Building Code, the Ontario Municipal Code, The Ontario Plan and all other 
ordinances adopted by the City related to construction and safety. Therefore, no adverse 
impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the TOP FEIR (Section 5.7), groundwater saturation of 
sediments is required for earthquake induced liquefaction. In general, groundwater depths 
shallower than 10 feet to the surface can cause the highest liquefaction susceptibility. Depth to 
ground water at the project site during the winter months is estimated to be between 250 to 
450 feet below ground surface. Therefore, the liquefaction potential within the project area is 
minimal. Implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code and Ontario 
Municipal code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level. 

Mitigation: None required. 

iv) Landslides? 

Discussion of Effects: The project would not expose people or structures to potential adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides because the relatively flat 
topography of the project site (less than 2 percent slope across the City) makes the chance of 
landslides remote. Implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code and 
Ontario Municipal Code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

Item C - 28 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 20 of 36 

Discussion of Effects: The project will not result in significant soil erosion or loss of topsoil because 
of the previously disturbed and developed nature of the project site and the limited size and scope 
of the project. Grading increases the potential for erosion by removing protective vegetation, 
changing natural drainage patterns, and constructing slopes.  However, compliance with the 
California Building Code and review of grading plans by the City Engineer will ensure no significant 
impacts will occur.  In addition, the City requires an erosion/dust control plan for projects located 
within this area. Implementation of a NPDES program, the Environmental Resource Element of the 
Policy Plan (General Plan) strategies, Uniform Building Code and Ontario Municipal code would 
reduce impacts to a less than significant level. 

Mitigation: The following mitigation measures shall be implemented: 

i) Prior to issuance of grading permits, the applicant shall submit an erosion control plan to reduce 
wind erosion impacts. 

ii) Fugitive dust generated during cleaning, grading, earth moving or excavation should be 
controlled by regular watering, paving of construction roads, or other dust-preventative 
measures. 

iii) After clearing, grading, or earth moving: 

(1) Seed and water until plant cover is established; 

(2) Spread soil binders; 

(3) Form and maintain a crust on the surface through repeated soaking that will prevent dust 
pickup by wind; and 

(4) Sweep streets if silt is carried to adjacent public thoroughfares. 

iv) Obtain authorization to discharge storm water under an NPDES construction storm water 
permit and pay appropriate fees. 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

Discussion of Effects: The project would not result in the location of development on a geologic unit 
or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable because as previously discussed, the 
potential for liquefaction and landslides associated with the project is less than significant. The 
Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.7) indicates that subsidence is generally associated with large 
decreases or withdrawals of water from the aquifer. The project would not withdraw water from the 
existing aquifer. Further, implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code 
and Ontario Municipal code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), 
creating substantial risks to life or property? 

Discussion of Effects: The majority of Ontario, including the project site, is located on alluvial soil 
deposits. These types of soils are not considered to be expansive. Therefore, no adverse impacts 
are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative 
wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of 
wastewater? 

Discussion of Effects: The area is served by the local sewer system and the use of alternative 
systems is not necessary. Therefore, there will be no impact to the sewage system. 

Mitigation: None required. 

7) GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project: 

Item C - 29 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 21 of 36 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 

Discussion of Effects: The impact of buildout of The Ontario Plan on the environment due to the 
emission of greenhouse gases (“GHGs”) was analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) 
for the Policy Plan (General Plan).  According to the EIR, this impact would be significant and 
unavoidable.  (Re-circulated Portions of the Ontario Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report, p. 2-
118.)  This EIR was certified by the City on January 27, 2010, at which time a statement of 
overriding considerations was also adopted for The Ontario Plan’s significant and unavoidable 
impacts, including that concerning the emission of greenhouse gases. 

Pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21083.3, this impact need not be analyzed further, 
because (1) the proposed project would result in an impact that was previously analyzed in The 
Ontario Plan EIR, which was certified by the City; (2) the proposed project would not result in any 
greenhouse gas impacts that were not addressed in The Ontario Plan EIR; (3) the proposed project 
is consistent with The Ontario Plan.   

As part of the City’s certification of The Ontario Plan EIR and its adoption of The Ontario Plan, the 
City adopted mitigation measures 6-1 through 6-6 with regard to the significant and unavoidable 
impact relating to GHG emissions.  These mitigation measures, in summary, required: 

MM 6-1.  The City is required to prepare a Climate Action Plan (CAP). 

MM 6-2.  The City is required to consider for inclusion in the CAP a list of emission reduction 
measures. 

MM 6-3.  The City is required to amend its Municipal Code to incorporate a list of emission 
reduction concepts. 

MM 6-4.  The City is required to consider the emission reduction measures and concepts 
contained in MMs 6-2 and 6-3 when reviewing new development prior to adoption of the 
CAP. 

MM 6-5.  The City is required to evaluate new development for consistency with the 
Sustainable Communities Strategy, upon adoption by the Southern California Association 
of Governments. 

MM 6-6.  The City is required to participate in San Bernardino County’s Green Valley 
Initiative. 

While Public Resources Code section 21083.3 requires that relevant mitigation measures from a 
General Plan EIR be imposed on a project that is invoking that section’s limited exemption from 
CEQA, these mitigation measures impose obligations on the City, not applicants, and hence are 
not directly relevant.  However, the mitigation proposed below carries out, on a project-level, the 
intent of The Ontario Plan’s mitigation on this subject. 

Mitigation Required:  The following mitigation measures shall be required: 

i) The City has reviewed the emission reduction measures and concepts in The Ontario Plan 
EIR’s MM 6-2 and 6-3, and has determined that the following actions apply and shall be 
undertaken by the applicant in connection with the project: 

ii) Evaluate existing landscaping and options to convert reflective and impervious surfaces to 
landscaping, and install or replace vegetation with drought-tolerant , low-maintenance native 
species or edible landscaping that can also provide shade and reduce heat-island effects; 

iii) Require all new landscaping irrigation systems installed to be automated, high-efficient 
irrigation systems to reduce water use and require use of bubbler irrigation; low-angle, low-flow 
spray heads; or moisture sensors; and  

iv) Reduce heat gain from pavement and other similar hardscaping. 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

Item C - 30 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 22 of 36 

Discussion of Effects:  The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan Goal ER 4 of 
improving air quality by, among other things, implementation of Policy ER4-3, regarding the 
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in accordance with regional, state and federal regulations.  
In addition, the proposed project is consistent with the policies outlined in Section 5.6.4 of the 
Environmental Impact Report for The Ontario Plan, which aims to reduce the City’s contribution of 
greenhouse gas emissions at build-out by fifteen (15%), because the project is upholding the 
applicable City’s adopted mitigation measures as represented in 6-1 through 6-6.  Therefore, the 
proposed project does not conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of reducing emissions of greenhouse gases. 

Mitigation Required:  None required. 

8) HAZARDS & HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, 
use or disposal of hazardous materials? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use or disposal of 
hazardous materials during either construction or project implementation. Therefore, no adverse 
impacts are anticipated. However, in the unlikely event of an accident, implementation of the 
strategies included in The Ontario Plan will decrease the potential for health and safety risks from 
hazardous materials to a less than significant impact. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not include the use of hazardous materials or 
volatile fuels. In addition, there are no known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within 
close proximity to the subject site, which use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they 
would pose a significant hazard to visitors/occupants to the subject site, in the event of an upset 
condition resulting in the release of a hazardous material. 

Mitigation: None required 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances 
or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not include the use, emissions or handling of 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances or waste. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant 
hazard to the public or the environment? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project site is not listed on the hazardous materials site 
compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. Therefore, the project would not create 
a hazard to the public or the environment, as a result no impacts is anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) For a project located within the safety zone of the airport land use compatibility plan for 
ONT or Chino Airports, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or 
working in the project area? 

Discussion of Effects: According to the Land Use Element (Exhibit LU-06 Airport Environs) of the 
Policy Plan (General Plan), the proposed site is located within the airport land use plan. However, 
the project will not result in a safety hazard for people working or residing in the project area 
because it will not obstruct aircraft maneuvering because of the project's low elevation and the 

Item C - 31 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 23 of 36 

architectural style of the project. Additionally, the Land Use Compatibility Guidelines for Noise 
Impacts (Table LU-08) shows the proposed use as normally accepted in the 60-65 dB CNEL. The 
proposed use will comply with the standards for mitigating noise. Therefore, any potential impacts 
would be reduced to a less than significant levels. 

Mitigation: None required. 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the project area?  

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. Therefore, 
no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan 
or emergency evacuation plan? 

Discussion of Effects: The City's Safety Element, as contained within The Ontario Plan, includes 
policies and procedures to be administered in the event of a disaster. The Ontario Plan seeks 
interdepartmental and inter-jurisdictional coordination and collaboration to be prepared for, respond 
to and recover from every day and disaster emergencies. In addition, the project will comply with 
the requirements of the Ontario Fire Department and all City requirements for fire and other 
emergency access. Because the project is required to comply with all applicable City codes, any 
impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level. 

Mitigation: None required. 

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland 
fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located in or near wildlands. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

9) HYDROLOGY & WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 

a) Violate any other water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or potential for 
discharge of storm water pollutants from areas of material storage, vehicle or equipment 
fueling, vehicle or equipment maintenance (including washing), waste handling, hazardous 
materials handling or storage, delivery areas or loading docks, or other outdoor work areas? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is served by City water and sewer service and will not affect 
water quality standards or waste discharge requirements. Discharge of storm water pollutants from 
areas of materials storage, vehicle or equipment fueling, vehicle or equipment maintenance 
(including washing, waste handling, hazardous materials handling or storage, delivery areas or 
loading docks, or other outdoor work) areas could result in a temporary increase in the amount of 
suspended solids, trash and debris, oil and grease, organic compounds, pesticides, nutrients, 
heavy metals and bacteria pathogens in surface flows during a concurrent storm event, thus 
resulting in surface water quality impacts. The site is required to comply with the statewide National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Industrial Activities Stormwater Permit, 
the San Bernardino County Area-Wide Urban Runoff Permit (MS4 permit) and the City of Ontario’s 
Municipal Code (Title 6, Chapter 6 (Stormwater Drainage System)). This would reduce any impacts 
to below a level of significance. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to 
a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have 
been granted)? 

Item C - 32 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 24 of 36 

Discussion of Effects: An increase in the current amount of water flow to the project site is 
anticipated, however, the proposed project will not deplete groundwater supplies, nor will it interfere 
with recharge. The water flows associated with the proposed use of the property will be negligible 
since the impacts of new development were already analyzed during the recent Ontario General 
Plan update. Furthermore, the development of the site will require the grading of the site and 
excavation is expected to be less than three feet and would not affect the existing aquifer, estimated 
to be about 230 to 250 feet below the ground surface. Therefore, no adverse impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on- or off-site or volume of storm water runoff to cause environmental 
harm or potential for significant increases in erosion of the project site or surrounding 
areas? 

Discussion of Effects: It is not anticipated that the project would alter the drainage pattern of the 
site or area, in a manner that would result in erosion, siltation or flooding on-or-off site nor will the 
proposed project increase the erosion of the subject site or surrounding areas. The existing 
drainage pattern of the project site will not be altered and it will have no significant impact on 
downstream hydrology. Stormwater generated by the project will be discharged in compliance with 
the statewide NPDES General Construction Activities Stormwater Permit and San Bernardino 
County MS4 permit requirements. With the full implementation of a Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan developed in compliance with the General Construction Activities Permit 
requirements, the Best Management Practices included in the SWPPP, and a stormwater 
monitoring program would reduce any impacts to below a level of significance. No streams or 
streambeds are present on the site. Therefore, no changes in erosion off-site are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site or potential for 
significant changes in the flow velocity or volume of storm water runoff to cause 
environmental harm? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is not anticipated to increase the flow velocity or 
volume of storm water runoff to cause environmental harm from the site and will not create a burden 
on existing infrastructure.  Furthermore, with the implementation of an approved Water Quality 
Management Plan developed for the site, in compliance with the San Bernardino County MS4 
Permit requirements, stormwater runoff volume shall be reduced to below a level of significance.  

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff 
(a&b) during construction and/or post-construction activity? 

Discussion of Effects: It is not anticipated that the project would create or contribute runoff water 
that would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or create or 
contribute stormwater runoff pollutants during construction and/or post-construction activity. 
Pursuant to the requirements of The Ontario Plan, the City’s Development Code, and the San 
Bernardino County MS4 Permit’s “Water Quality Management Plan” (WQMP), individual 
developments must provide site drainage and WQMP plans according to guidelines established by 
the City’s Engineering Department. If master drainage facilities are not in place at the time of project 
development, then standard engineering practices for controlling post-development runoff may be 
required, which could include the construction of on-site storm water detention and/or 
retention/infiltration facilities. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

Item C - 33 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 25 of 36 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality or potential for discharge of storm water to 
affect the beneficial uses of receiving water? 

Discussion of Effects: Activities associated with the construction period, could result in a temporary 
increase in the amount of suspended solids in surface flows during a concurrent storm event, thus 
resulting in surface water quality impacts. The site is required to comply with the statewide NPDES 
General Construction Permit and the City of Ontario’s Municipal Code (Title 6, Chapter 6 
(Stormwater Drainage System)) to minimize water pollution. Thus it is anticipated that there is no 
potential for discharges of stormwater during construction that will affect the beneficial uses of the 
receiving waters. However, with the General Construction Permit requirement and implementation 
of the policies in The Ontario Plan, any impacts associated with the project would be less than 
significant. 

Mitigation: None required. 

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped 
on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard 
delineation map. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area, structures that would impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the Safety Element (Exhibit S-2) of the Policy Plan (General 
Plan), the site lies outside of the 100-year flood hazard area. Therefore, no adverse impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the Safety Element (Exhibit S-2) of The Ontario Plan, the site 
lies outside of the 100-year flood hazard area. No levees or dams are located near the project site. 
Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

j) Expose people or structures to inundation by seiche, tsunami or mudflow? 

Discussion of Effects: There are no lakes or substantial reservoirs near the project site; therefore, 
impacts from seiche are not anticipated. The City of Ontario has relatively flat topography, less than 
two percent across the City, and the chance of mudflow is remote. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

10) LAND USE & PLANNING. Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is located in an area that is currently developed with urban 
land uses. This project will be of similar design and size to surrounding development. The project 
will become a part of the larger multi-family housing community located within the immediate area. 
Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Conflict with applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agencies with jurisdiction over 
the project (including, but not limited to general plan, airport land use compatibility plan, 
specific plan, or development code) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigation an 
environmental effect? 

Item C - 34 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 26 of 36 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan and does not 
interfere with any policies for environmental protection. As such, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation 
plan? 

Discussion of Effects: There are no adopted habitat conservation plans in the project area.  As such 
no conflicts or impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

11) MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is located within a mostly developed area surrounded by 
urban land uses. There are no known mineral resources in the area. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

Discussion of Effects: There are no known mineral resources in the area. Therefore, no impacts 
are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

12) NOISE. Would the project result in: 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in 
the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will not expose people to or generate noise levels in excess of 
standards as established in The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.12). No additional analysis will be 
required at the time of site development review. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne 
noise levels? 

Discussion of Effects: The uses associated with this project normally do not induce ground borne 
vibrations. As such, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will not be a significant noise generator and will not cause a 
substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels because of the limited size and scope of 
the project. In addition, the proposed multi-family apartment complex will be similar in size and 
scale to others that are currently located to the east and west of the project site.  Moreover, the 
proposed use will be required to operate within the noise levels permitted residential development, 
pursuant to City of Ontario Development Code. Therefore, no increases in noise levels within the 
vicinity of the project are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project? 

Item C - 35 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 27 of 36 

Discussion of Effects: Temporary construction activities will minimally impact ambient noise levels. 
All construction machinery will be maintained according to industry standards to help minimize the 
impacts. Normal activities associated with the project are unlikely to increase ambient noise levels. 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) For a project located within the noise impact zones of the airport land use compatibility plan 
for ONT and Chino Airports, would the project expose people residing or working in the 
project area to excessive noise levels? 

Discussion of Effects: According to the Safety Element in The Ontario Plan, the proposed site is 
located within the airport land use plan. However, the project is located within the 60 to 65CNEL 
noise contour, which according to the noise level exposure and land use compatibility guidelines 
are normally acceptable areas for the development of multi-family housing. Therefore, no impacts 
are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people residing 
or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. Therefore, 
no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

13) POPULATION & HOUSING. Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing 
new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of road or other 
infrastructure)? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is located in a developed area and will induce some population 
growth as it’s a project proposing to develop a 75-unit multi-family apartment complex. The 
proposed density is consistent with the underlying HDR-45 zone and the general plan land use 
designation. The impacts of the proposed development were reviewed under the environmental 
impact report that was prepared and adopted in 2010 for TOP Policy Plan (General Plan). In 
addition, the project will be required to pay impacts fees to the City and school district for the 
additional services that will be needed. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is vacant land, therefore, no housing will be displaced. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

Discussion of Effects: The project site is vacant land, therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

14) PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project: 

a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order 
to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for 
any of the public services: 

Item C - 36 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 28 of 36 

i) Fire protection? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area currently served by the Ontario Fire 
Department. The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of 
any existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to 
construct new facilities. In addition, the project will be required to pay impacts fees to the City 
and school district for services that will be needed.  Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

ii) Police protection? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the Ontario Police 
Department. The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of 
any existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to 
construct new facilities. In addition, the project will be required to pay impacts fees to the City 
and school district for services that will be needed. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

iii) Schools? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will be required to pay school fees as prescribed by State 
law prior to the issuance of building permits. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

iv) Parks? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. 
The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing 
facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to construct 
new facilities. In addition, the project will be required to pay impacts fees to the City and school 
district for services that will be needed. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

v) Other public facilities? 

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. 
The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing 
facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to construct 
new facilities. In addition, the project will be required to pay impacts fees to the City and school 
district for services that will be needed. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

15) RECREATION. Would the project: 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities 
such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

Discussion of Effects: This project is proposing new multi-family housing (68-unit apartment 
complex) that would cause an increase in the use of neighborhood parks or other recreational 
facilities. However, the proposed project has been designed to provide recreational amenities for 
its residents per the requirement of our Development Code in the form of a ½ basketball court, kids 
play area, library, workout room and roof community garden. In addition, the project will also be 
required to pay impacts fees to the City and school district for services that will be needed. 
Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities that have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project has been designed to provide recreational amenities 

Item C - 37 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 29 of 36 

for its residents per the requirement of our Development Code in the form of a ½ basketball court, 
kids play area, library, workout room and roof garden. In addition, the project will also be required 
to pay impacts fees to the City and school district for services that will be needed. Therefore, no 
impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

16) TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project: 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness 
for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of 
transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of 
the circulation system, including but not limited? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is in an area that is mostly developed with all street improvements 
already existing. The number of vehicle trips per day is not expected to be increased significantly. 
In addition, the project will also be required to pay impacts fees to the City and school district for 
services that will be needed. In 2010, TOP Policy Plan (General Plan) Update EIR evaluated the 
traffic impacts associated of the project site based on an assumed density of 35 dwelling units per 
acre. The project proposes a density of 34 dwelling units per acre, which is less than what TOP 
Policy Plan (General Plan) EIR assumed for the site. Furthermore, the project will not create a 
substantial increase in the number of vehicle trips, traffic volume or congestion at intersections. 
Therefore, the proposed project would have minimal additional impacts than what was previously 
analyzed in the adopted TOP FEIR traffic study. 

Less than significant impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation:  None required. 

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to, 
level of service standard and travel demand measures, or other standards established by 
the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is in an area that is mostly developed with all street improvements 
already existing. The project will not conflict with an applicable congestion management program 
or negatively impact the level of service standards on adjacent arterials, as the amount of trips to 
be generated  are minimal in comparison to existing capacity in the congestion management 
program. The number of vehicle trips per day is not expected to be increased significantly. In 2010, 
TOP Policy Plan (General Plan) Update EIR evaluated the traffic impacts associated of the project 
site based on an assumed density of 35 dwelling units per acre. The project proposes a density of 
34 dwelling units per acre, which is less than what TOP Policy Plan (General Plan) EIR assumed 
for the site. The project will not create a substantial increase in the number of vehicle trips, traffic 
volume or congestion at intersections. Therefore, the proposed project would have minimal 
additional impacts than what was previously analyzed in the adopted TOP FEIR traffic study. 

Mitigation:  None required. 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a 
change in location that results in substantial safety risks? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will not create a substantial safety risk or interfere with air traffic 
patterns at Ontario International Airport as it is located outside of the safety zones areas. Therefore, 
no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is in an area that is mostly developed. All street improvements 
are complete and no alterations are proposed for adjacent intersections or arterials. The project 
will, therefore, not create a substantial increase in hazards due to a design feature. Therefore, no 
impacts are anticipated. 

Item C - 38 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 30 of 36 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

Discussion of Effects: The project will be designed to provide access for all emergency vehicles 
and will therefore not create an inadequate emergency access. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

f) Result in inadequate parking capacity? 

Discussion of Effects: The project is required and will meet the parking standards established by 
the Ontario Development Code and will therefore not create an inadequate parking capacity. 
Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

g) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs supporting alternative transportation 
(e.g., bus turnouts, bicycle racks)? 

Discussion of Effects: The project does not conflict with any transportation policies, plans or 
programs. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

17) UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control 
Board? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is served by the City of Ontario sewer system, which 
has waste treated by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency at the RP-1 treatment plant. The project is 
required to meet the requirements of the Ontario Engineering Department regarding wastewater. 
Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is served by the City of Ontario sewer system and the 
waste is treated by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency at the RP-1 treatment plant. RP-1 is not at 
capacity and this project will not cause RP-1 to exceed capacity. The project will also be required 
to pay impact fees for services that will be required. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is served by the City of Ontario. The project is required 
to meet the requirements of the Ontario Engineering Department regarding storm drain facilities. In 
addition, the project will also be required to pay impact fees for services that will be required. 
Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and 
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? In making this determination, the 
City shall consider whether the project is subject to the water supply assessment 
requirements of Water Code Section 10910, et seq. (SB 610), and the requirements of 
Government Code Section 664737 (SB 221). 

Discussion of Effects: The project is served by the City of Ontario water system. There is currently 

Item C - 39 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 31 of 36 

a sufficient water supply available to the City of Ontario to serve this project. . In addition, the project 
will also be required to pay impact fees for services that will be required. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider that serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to 
the provider's existing commitments? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is served by the City of Ontario sewer system, which 
has waste treated by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency at the RP-1 treatment plant. RP-1 is not at 
capacity and this project will not cause RP-1 to exceed capacity. In addition, the project will also 
be required to pay impact fees for services that will be required. Therefore, no impacts are 
anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid 
waste disposal needs? 

Discussion of Effects: City of Ontario serves the proposed project. Currently, the City of Ontario 
contracts with a waste disposal company that transports trash to a landfill with sufficient capacity 
to handle the City’s solid waste disposal needs. No impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste? 

Discussion of Effects: This project complies with federal, state, and local statues and regulations 
regarding solid waste. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

18) MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially 
reduce the habitat or a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below 
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number 
or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples 
of the major periods of California history or prehistory? 

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not have the potential to reduce wildlife habitat 
and threaten a wildlife species. The project site is not located within a recognized area known to 
have wildlife or threaten species. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

a) Does the project have the potential to achieve short-term environmental goals to the 
disadvantage of long-term environmental goals? 

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have the potential to achieve short-term environmental 
goals to the disadvantage of long-term environmental goals. Staff has carefully reviewed the 
potential environmental impacts of the proposed multi-family apartment complex, and based on the 
CEQA checklist that has been prepared for the project, staff finds that any impacts have been and 
or will be mitigated by the design of the project, the conditions of approval for the project and the 
impact fees that will be collected from the developer. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated. 

Mitigation: None required. 

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? 
("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of 
other current project, and the effects of probable future projects.) 

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have impacts that are cumulatively considerable. 

Item C - 40 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 
 
 

Page 32 of 36 

Mitigation: None required. 

c) Does the project have environmental effects that will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have environmental effects that will cause substantial 
adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly. 

Mitigation: None required. 

 

EARLIER ANALYZES 

(Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, one or 
more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or Negative Declaration. Section 
15063(c)(3)(D)): 

1) Earlier analyzes used. Identify earlier analyzes used and state where they are available for review. 

a) The Ontario Plan Final EIR 

b) The Ontario Plan 

c) City of Ontario Zoning 

All documents listed above are on file with the City of Ontario Planning Department, 303 East “B” Street, 
Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036. 

2) Impacts adequately addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope 
of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards. 

Comments III.A and C were addressed in The Ontario Plan FEIR and considered a significant adverse 
effect that could not be mitigated. A statement of overriding considerations was adopted for The Ontario 
Plan FEIR. 

 

MITIGATION MEASURES 

(For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated,” describe the mitigation measures, 
which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-
specific conditions for the project): 

1) Air Quality—The following fugitive dust mitigation measures shall be required: 

a) Use of dust control during clearing, grading and construction. Fugitive dust generated during 
cleaning, grading, earth moving or excavation shall be controlled by regular watering, paving of 
construction roads, or other dust-preventative measures. If freshwater resources are too precious 
to waste on dust control, availability of brackish or reclaimed water sources shall be investigated. 
Soil disturbance shall be terminated when high winds (25 mph or greater) make dust control 
extremely difficult. 

b) Minimization of construction interference with regional non-project traffic movement. Impacts shall 
be reduced to below a level of significance by the following mitigation measures: 

i) Scheduling receipt of construction materials to non-peak travel periods. 

ii) Routing construction traffic through areas of least impact sensitivity. 

iii) Limiting lane closures and detours to off-peak travel periods. 

iv) Providing rideshare incentives for contractor and subcontractor personnel. 

c) After clearing, grading or earth moving: 

i) Seed and water until plant cover is established; 

Item C - 41 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No.: PDEV14-040 

Page 33 of 36 

ii) Spread soil binders;

iii) Form and maintain a crust on the surface through repeated soaking that will prevent dust pickup
by wind; and

iv) Reduce “spill-over” effects by washing vehicles entering public roadways from dirt off road
project areas, and washing/sweeping project access to public roadways on an adequate
schedule.

d) Emissions control from on-site equipment through a routine, mandatory program of low-emission
tune-ups.

2) Geology and Soils—The following mitigation measures shall be implemented:

a) Prior to issuance of grading permits, the applicant shall submit an erosion control plan to reduce
wind erosion impacts.

b) Fugitive dust generated during cleaning, grading, earth moving or excavation shall be controlled by
regular watering, paving of construction roads, or other dust-preventative measures.

c) After clearing, grading, or earth moving:

i) Seed and water until plant cover is established;

ii) Spread soil binders;

iii) Form and maintain a crust on the surface through repeated soaking that will prevent dust pickup
by wind; and

3) Sweep streets if silt is carried to adjacent public thoroughfares.

a) Obtain authorization to discharge storm water under an NPDES construction storm water permit
and pay appropriate fees.

4) Greenhouse Gas Emissions—The following mitigation measures shall be implemented:

a) The City has reviewed the emission reduction measures and concepts in The Ontario Plan EIR’s
MM 6-2 and 6-3, and has determined that the following actions apply and shall be undertaken by
the applicant in connection with the project:

i) Evaluate existing landscaping and options to convert reflective and impervious surfaces to
landscaping, and install or replace vegetation with drought-tolerant , low-maintenance native
species or edible landscaping that can also provide shade and reduce heat-island effects;

ii) Require all new landscaping irrigation systems installed to be automated, high-efficient
irrigation systems to reduce water use and require use of bubbler irrigation; low-angle, low-flow
spray heads; or moisture sensors;

iii) Reduce heat gain from pavement and other similar hardscaping.

Item C - 42 of 92



Page 34 of 36 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Project File No.: PDEV14-040 

Project Sponsor: Mrs. Linda Lui, 1401 S. 4th Avenue, Arcadia, CA. 91006 

 

Lead Agency/Contact Person: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner, City of Ontario, Planning Department, 303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2431 

Mitigation Measures/Implementing Action Responsible for 
Monitoring 

Monitoring 
Frequency 

Timing of 
Verification 

Method of 
Verification 

Verified 
(Initial/Date) 

Sanctions for Non-
Compliance 

1) AIR QUALITY       

a) Use of dust control during clearing, grading and 
construction. Fugitive dust generated during cleaning, 
grading, earth moving or excavation shall be controlled by 
regular watering, paving of construction roads, or other 
dust-preventative measures. If freshwater resources are 
too precious to waste on dust control, availability of 
brackish or reclaimed water sources shall be investigated. 
Soil disturbance shall be terminated when high winds (25 
mph or greater) make dust control extremely difficult. 

Building Dept & 
Planning Dept 

Throughout 
construction 

As necessary On-site inspection  Stop work order; or 
withhold grading 

permit; or withhold 
building permit 

b) Minimization of construction interference with regional 
non-project traffic movement. Impacts shall be reduced to 
below a level of significance by the following mitigation 
measures: 
i) Scheduling receipt of construction materials to non-

peak travel periods. 
ii) Routing construction traffic through areas of least 

impact sensitivity. 
iii) Limiting lane closures and detours to off-peak travel 

periods. 
iv) Providing rideshare incentives for contractor and 

subcontractor personnel. 

Building Dept & 
Planning Dept 

Throughout 
construction 

As necessary On-site inspection  Stop work order; or 
withhold grading 

permit; or withhold 
building permit 

c) After clearing, grading or earth moving: 
i) Seed and water until plant cover is established. 
ii) Spread soil binders. 
iii) Form and maintain a crust on the surface through 

repeated soaking that will prevent dust pickup by 
wind. 

iv) Reduce “spill-over” effects by washing vehicles 
entering public roadways from dirt off road project 
areas, and washing/sweeping project access to 
public roadways on an adequate schedule. 

Building Dept & 
Planning Dept 

Throughout 
construction 

As necessary On-site inspection  Stop work order; or 
withhold grading 

permit; or withhold 
building permit 

Item C - 43 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No(s).: PDEV14-040 
 

Page 35 of 36 

Mitigation Measures/Implementing Action Responsible for 
Monitoring 

Monitoring 
Frequency 

Timing of 
Verification 

Method of 
Verification 

Verified 
(Initial/Date) 

Sanctions for Non-
Compliance 

d) Emissions control from on-site equipment through a 
routine, mandatory program of low-emission tune-ups. 

Building Dept & 
Planning Dept 

Throughout 
construction 

As necessary On-site inspection  Stop work order; or 
withhold grading 

permit; or withhold 
building permit 

2) GEOLOGY & SOILS       

a) The applicant shall submit an erosion control plan to 
reduce wind erosion impacts. 

Building Dept, 
Planning Dept & 
Engineering Dept 

Grading Plan 
issuance 

Prior to issuance of 
grading permits 

Plan check  Withhold grading 
permit 

b) Fugitive dust generated during cleaning, grading, earth 
moving or excavation shall be controlled by regular 
watering, paving of construction roads, or other dust-
preventative measures. 

Building Dept Throughout 
construction 

As necessary On-site inspection  Stop work order; or 
withhold grading 

permit; or withhold 
building permit 

c) After clearing, grading, or earth moving: 
i) Seed and water until plant cover is established. 
ii) Spread soil binders. 
iii) Form and maintain a crust on the surface through 

repeated soaking that will prevent dust pickup by 
wind. 

iv) Sweep streets if silt is carried to adjacent public 
thoroughfares 

Building Dept & 
Planning Dept 

Throughout 
construction 

As necessary On-site inspection  Stop work order; or 
withhold grading 

permit; or withhold 
building permit 

d) Obtain authorization to discharge storm water under an 
NPDES construction storm water permit and pay 
appropriate fees. 

Engineering Dept Grading Plan 
issuance 

Prior to issuance of 
grading permits 

Plan check  Withhold grading 
permit 

3) GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS       

a) The City has reviewed the emission reduction measures 
and concepts in The Ontario Plan EIR’s MM 6-2 and 6-3, 
and has determined that the following actions apply and 
shall be undertaken by the applicant in connection with the 
project: 
i) Evaluate existing landscaping and options to convert 

reflective and impervious surfaces to landscaping, 
and install or replace vegetation with drought-tolerant 
, low-maintenance native species or edible 
landscaping that can also provide shade and reduce 
heat-island effects. 

ii) Require all new landscaping irrigation systems 
installed to be automated, high-efficient irrigation 
systems to reduce water use and require use of 
bubbler irrigation; low-angle, low-flow spray heads; or 
moisture sensors. 

Building Dept & 
Planning Dept 

Throughout 
construction 

As necessary Plan check/On-site 
inspection 

 Stop work order; or 
withhold building 

permit 

Item C - 44 of 92



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form 
File No(s).: PDEV14-040 
 

Page 36 of 36 

Mitigation Measures/Implementing Action Responsible for 
Monitoring 

Monitoring 
Frequency 

Timing of 
Verification 

Method of 
Verification 

Verified 
(Initial/Date) 

Sanctions for Non-
Compliance 

iii) Reduce heat gain from pavement and other similar 
hardscaping. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Item C - 45 of 92



 

-1- 

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION  
December 5, 2016 

 
DECISION NO: [insert #]  
 
FILE NO: PDEV14-040 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan for the construction of a five-story, 68-unit 
residential apartment complex on 1.98 acres of land, located along the southwest corner 
of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, within the High Density Residential (HDR-
45) zoning district.  APN: 1011-383-04; submitted by Mission Pams Investments, LLC. 
 
 

PART I: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

MISSION PAMS INVESTMENTS, LLC., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) 
has filed an application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV14-040, as 
described in the subject of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or 
"Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 1.98 acres of land located  
along the southwest corner of Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, and is depicted 
in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. The site is currently vacant. Existing land uses, 
general plan, zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the 
project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Designation Zoning Designation 
Specific 

Plan Land 
Use 

Site Vacant High Density Residential (25.1 – 
45 du/ac) 

HDR-45 

(High Density Residential -25.1 to 45 
du/ac) 

n/a 

North Service Station and Vacant 
Retail Store 

Business Park            

  (0.6 FAR) 

IL  

(Light Industrial)  

n/a 

South Single Family Home 
Medium Density Residential 

( 11.1 – 25 du/ac) 

MDR-18 

(Medium Density Residential - 

 11.1 to 18 du/ac) 

n/a 

East Retail Center Neighborhood Commercial (0.4 
FAR) 

CN 

(Neighborhood Commercial – 0.4 
Max. FAR)  

n/a 

West Motel High Density Residential (25.1 – 
45 du/ac) 

HDR-45 

(High Density Residential -25.1 to 45 
du/ac) 

n/a 

 

Item C - 46 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-2- 

Project Description: The Development Plan (File No. PDEV14-040) proposes to 
develop a five-story (61-foot tall), 68-unit residential apartment complex (Villa Palmetto) 
on the 1.98 acre site. Staff has worked with the applicant to design a project that reflects 
the goals and requirements of the High Density Residential-45 land use designation and 
those of the TOP (The Ontario Plan).  The project has also been designed with the 
objective of creating a safe and attractive, site design that carries throughout the project. 
The front of the building will face Mission Boulevard. Parking has been conveniently and 
carefully situated in the form of tuck-under carports, free-standing carports and surface 
parking. Landscaping and decorative paving have also been provided throughout the 
project to enhance the appeal and create a sense of place. The development is proposed 
to be a gated community (see Figure A: Site Plan). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure A: Site Plan 
 
 
 
 
The proposed 68-unit apartment complex will be composed of one long rectangular 
building (232-feet) that will be located along the northern portion of the site. The building 
will provide 10-foot setbacks along Mission Boulevard and Palmetto Avenue, 52-feet 
along the west property line and 213-feet along the south property line. The project is 

Building 

Item C - 47 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-3- 

proposing to provide two points of access; one from Mission Avenue and the second from 
Palmetto Avenue. Access along Mission Boulevard will be restricted to emergency access 
only. A lock-box will be installed on the gates for emergency vehicles to utilize. Palmetto 
Avenue will serve as the primary ingress and egress access point into the development. 
The gated entry system will be designed to operate via remote control or a transponder. 
 
The project will be developed at a density of 34 dwelling units per acre, well above the 
HDR-45 zoning designation minimum density requirement of 25.1 dwelling units per acre. 
The project proposes 5 different floor plans that will range in size from 602 to 860 square 
feet. The development will be composed of 56-one bedroom one-bath units, 12-two 
bedroom one-bath units and 139 parking spaces. The proposed parking will consist of 
21-tuck under carports, 47 regular carports and 55 surface parking spaces. Of the total 
parking spaces provided, 14 spaces will be allocated for guest parking, in compliance 
with City requirements. The Ontario Development Code requires the project to provide a 
minimum of 136 parking spaces and 139 parking spaces have been provided  
 
Recreational Amenities 
 
Recreational amenities will be located along the south side of the building and along the 
eastern portion of the project site. The amenities include a half basketball court, a kids 
play ground area over a poured in place rubber surface and playground swings (see 
Exhibit B: Landscape Plan). The recreational area will also feature decorative metal 
benches and a picnic area. Within the interior of the first floor of the building, the project 
will also provide an indoor library room, a gym and a reading/play room. To comply with 
the common open space requirement of 250 square feet of open space per unit (minimum 
of 17,000 square feet), the project is also proposing to utilize the roof as a rooftop 
community garden (see Exhibit C: Roof Community Garden). The rooftop community 
garden will feature a BBQ area, several benches, several raised planter areas, storage 
space and several shade structures for residents and guests to enjoy. When completed, 
the project will provide approximately 18,544 square feet of common open 
space/recreational space. 
 
Architectural Style 
 
The applicant is proposing a modern architectural style, exemplifying the high-quality 
architecture promoted by the HDR-45 Development Code Design Guidelines (see Figure 
B & C: Villa Palmetto Perspectives and Exhibits D-J: Elevations & Perspectives), through 
building plane horizontal and vertical offsets and color accents. Special attention was 
given to the colors, materials, massing, building form, and architectural details. This is 
exemplified though the use of: 

• Articulation in the building’s roof line. 
• Smooth and stamped stucco finishes. 
• Window trims that project out 12 to 18 inches. 
• Use of multiple colors to accentuate the architectural design. 
• Incorporation of horizontal and vertical elements that project 2 to 6 feet. 

Item C - 48 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-4- 

• Extensive use of glazing along the main entry area long the north elevation. 
• Incorporation of decorative canopies over the main entry area and key locations 

within the 5th floor; and 
• Open balconies for all units with decorative metal railings. 

 
Figure B: Perspectives of Villa Palmetto Apartments 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Figure C: Villa Palmetto Perspectives 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 49 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-5- 

PART II: RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study 
has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of the initial study, which indicated that all potential 
environmental impacts from the Project were less than significant or could be mitigated 
to a level of insignificance, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ("MND") was prepared 
pursuant to CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines and the City of Ontario Local CEQA 
Guidelines; and 
 

WHEREAS, the MND was made available to the public and to all interested 
agencies for review and comment pursuant to CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines and 
the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Development Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act, 
or make recommendation to the Planning Commission, on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Application, and no comments were received 
opposing the proposed development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy Plan 

(General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the properties 
listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning 
Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, which requires a minimum of 
60 dwelling units and a minimum density of 30 dwelling units per acre. The project 
proposes 68 dwelling units at a density of 34 dwelling units per acre; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with 
the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2016, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a 
hearing on the Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

PART III: THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

Item C - 50 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 

-6-

SECTION 1: As the decision-making body for the Project, the Development 
Advisory Board has reviewed and considered the information contained in the MND and 
the administrative record for the Project, including all written and oral evidence provided 
during the comment period. Based upon the facts and information contained in the MND 
and the administrative record, including all written and oral evidence presented to the 
Development Advisory Board, the Development Advisory Board finds as follows: 

(1) The MND, initial study and administrative record have been completed in
compliance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines and the City of Ontario Local CEQA 
Guidelines. 

(2) The MND and initial study contain a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project and reflects the independent judgment 
of the DAB; 

(3) There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a
fair argument that the project may result in significant environmental impacts. 

(4) All environmental impacts of the Project are either insignificant or can be
mitigated to a level of insignificance pursuant to the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
prepared for the project. 

SECTION 2: Based upon the substantial evidence presented to the DAB during 
the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, 
the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 

a. The Project is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint 
identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The 
Project has been designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario 
Development Code and the High Density Residential (HDR-45) zoning district, including 
standards relative to the particular land use proposed (68-unit residential apartment 
complex), as well as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, 
number of parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls 
and obstructions. Approval of the project will result in the development of a 68-unit 
residential apartment complex on approximately 1.98 acres. The project will include full 
on-site and off-site improvements that will also improve the immediate area. In addition, 
the density proposed of 34 dwelling units per acres is consistent with the minimum 25.1 
dwelling units per acre of the High Density Residential (HDR-45)  zone; and 

b. The Project will complement and/or improve upon the quality of existing
development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to 
protect the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed 
project. The proposed location of the project, and the proposed conditions under which it 
will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the Policy Plan component of The 

Item C - 51 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-7- 

Ontario Plan and the City’s Development Plan, and, therefore, will not be detrimental to 
the public health, safety, and general welfare. In addition, the project includes full on-site 
and off-site improvements and the project will improve the quality of the existing site. In 
addition, the proposed project will provide much needed housing which will also allow the 
City to comply with our Housing Element housing needs. Furthermore, the project will 
complement other multi-family residential developments in the immediate area; and 

 
c. The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on the 

environment. The environmental impacts of the Project were reviewed in conjunction with 
a MND prepared for the project, which will mitigate identified environmental impacts to an 
acceptable level; and 

 
d. The Project is consistent with the development standards set forth in the 

Development Code or applicable Specific Plan. The project has been reviewed for 
consistency with the development standards contained in the City of Ontario 
Development Code, which are applicable to the project, including those related to the 
particular land use being proposed, as well as building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot 
dimensions, design and landscaping, on-site landscaping, and fences and walls. As a 
result of such review, staff has found the project, when implemented in conjunction with 
the conditions of approval, to be consistent with the applicable Development Code 
requirements; and 
 

e. The Project is consistent with the design guidelines set forth in the 
Development Code or applicable Specific Plan. The proposed project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the design guidelines contained in the City of Ontario Development 
Code, which are applicable to the Project, including those guidelines relative to walls and 
fencing; lighting; streetscapes and walkways; plazas; paving, plants and furnishings; on-
site landscaping; and building design. As a result of such review, staff has found the 
project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, to be consistent 
with the applicable Development Code design guidelines. 
 

SECTION 3: Based upon the findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 and 
2, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission: 
 

(1) Approves and adopts the Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the 
Project; and 

 
(2) Adopts a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Project; and 
 
(3) Approves the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in 

the Department reports, included as Attachment “A” of this Decision, and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

 

Item C - 52 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-8- 

SECTION 4: The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or 
proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant 
of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in 
the defense. 
 

SECTION 5: The documents and materials that constitute the record of 
proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario 
City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records 
is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of December 2016. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item C - 53 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
  

-9- 

Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph 
 

 
 

  Project 
Site 

MISSION  M 
O 
U 
N 
T 
A 
I 
N 
  

P
A
L
M
E
T
T
O 
 
A
V
E 

Item C - 54 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-10- 

 
      Exhibit B: Landscape Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Item C - 55 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-11- 

 
Exhibit C: Roof Community Garden 

 
 
 
 
  

Item C - 56 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-12- 

Exhibit D: Elevations 
 

 
North Elevation 

 

 
South Elevation 

Item C - 57 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 

-13-

Exhibit E: Northeast Perspective 

Item C - 58 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-14- 

Exhibit F: Close-Up Perspective of North Elevation 
 
 

 
  

Item C - 59 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-15- 

 
Exhibit G: Southwest Perspective 

 
 

 
 
 

Item C - 60 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-16- 

Exhibit H: Close-Up Perspective of North Elevation 
 
 

 
  

Item C - 61 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-17- 

 
Exhibit I: Aerial View Perspective of Northwest Elevations 

 
 

 
  

Item C - 62 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
 

-18- 

 
Exhibit J: Aerial Perspective of Northeast Elevations 

 
 

   

Item C - 63 of 92



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV14-040 
December 5, 2016 
  

-19- 

 
 

 
 

Attachment “A” 
 

FILE NO. PDEV14-040 
DEPARTMENTAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 

 

Item C - 64 of 92



Item C - 65 of 92



Item C - 66 of 92



Item C - 67 of 92



Item C - 68 of 92



Item C - 69 of 92



Item C - 70 of 92



Item C - 71 of 92



Item C - 72 of 92



Item C - 73 of 92



Item C - 74 of 92



Item C - 75 of 92



Item C - 76 of 92



Item C - 77 of 92



Item C - 78 of 92



Item C - 79 of 92



Item C - 80 of 92



Item C - 81 of 92



Item C - 82 of 92



Item C - 83 of 92



Item C - 84 of 92



Item C - 85 of 92



Item C - 86 of 92



Item C - 87 of 92



Item C - 88 of 92



Item C - 89 of 92



Item C - 90 of 92



Item C - 91 of 92



Item C - 92 of 92



-1-

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION 
December 5, 2016 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV16-042 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct 55 single-family homes on 
approximately 7.07 acres of land within the P7 (single-family detached) residential land 
use designation of the Edenglen Specific Plan, located within two neighborhoods: the first 
bounded by Tulane Way to the north, Hampton Way to the east, Bradley Lane to the 
south and Claremont Drive to the west; and the second bounded by Riverside Drive to 
the north, the SCE utility easement corridor the east, Heritage Lane to the south and 
Cambridge Drive to the west. (APNs: 218-931-01 thru 23, 218-931-75 thru 87 and 218-
941-57 thru 78); submitted by Brookcal Ontario, LLC.

PART I: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

BROOKCAL ONTARIO, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV16-042, as described 
in the subject of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 7.07 acres of land
generally located within two neighborhoods of the Edenglen Specific Plan. The first 
neighborhood is bounded by Tulane Way to the north, Hampton Way to the east, Bradley 
Lane to the south and Claremont Drive to the west. The second neighborhood is bounded 
by Riverside Drive to the north, the SCE utility easement corridor the east, Heritage Lane 
to the south and Cambridge Drive to the west. The project site is depicted in Exhibit A: 
Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, 
and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Vacant Residential 
Lots 

LDR – Low Density 
Residential Edenglen Specific Plan P7 

North Single Family 
Residential 

LDR – Low Density 
Residential 

Edenglen Specific Plan 
& Creekside Specific 

Plan 

P1 & Single Family 
Residential 

South Single Family 
Residential 

LDR – Low Density 
Residential Edenglen Specific Plan P1, P-3 & P6 

East Single Family 
Residential 

LDR – Low Density 
Residential Edenglen Specific Plan P1, P2, P6 & SCE 

Corridor 

Item D - 1 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-2-

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

West 
Colony High School, 

Single Family 
Residential 

PS – Public School & 
LDR – Low Density 

Residential 

Civic Zoning District & 
Edenglen Specific Plan P6 

(2) Project Description: The 55 single-family homes will be located in five 
separate neighborhoods within the P7 (single-family detached) residential land use 
designation of the Edenglen Specific Plan. The lots range in size from 5,295 to 6,372 
square feet. Three floor plans are proposed with three elevations per plan.   All three 
plans were designed to de-emphasize the garage by recessing it a minimum of six feet 
behind the living area. Each plan provides a 2-car garage in addition to 2-driveway 
spaces.  Parking requirements are consistent with the parking requirements of the 
Development Code and the Edenglen Specific Plan. 

The architectural styles of the proposed single family homes include Spanish, Ranch and 
Monterey that are consistent with the Edenglen Specific Plan. In addition, Plan 1 is 
proposed to be a single-story building and Plans 2 and 3 are proposed to be two-story 
buildings increasing the diversity of architectural styles and design within the community. 
Landscaping along the street frontages, landscape buffers and paseos will be installed 
by the builder/developer and will be maintained by the homeowners’ association.  The 
front yard landscaping for each home will be installed by the builder and maintained by 
the homeowner.  Side and rear yard landscaping will be installed and maintained by the 
homeowner.   

PART II: RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study 
has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with the Edenglen Specific Plan (File No. PSP03-005), for which an EIR 
(SCH# 2004051108) was adopted by the City Council on November 1, 2005, and this 
Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental 
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately 
analyzed; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Development Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act, 
or make recommendation to the Planning Commission, on the subject Application; and 

Item D - 2 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-3-

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Application, and no comments were received 
opposing the proposed development; and 

WHEREAS, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy Plan 
(General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the properties 
listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by 
Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed 
project is consistent with the number of dwelling units (55) and density (6.8) specified in 
the Available Land Inventory. 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with 
the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT; and 

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2016, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a 
hearing on the Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 

PART III: THE DECISION 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 

SECTION 1: As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed 
and considered the information contained in the previously adopted EIR (SCH# 
2004051108) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information 
contained in the EIR (SCH# 2004051108) and supporting documentation, the DAB finds 
as follows: 

(1) The previous EIR (SCH# 2004051108) contains a complete and accurate
reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 

(2) The previous EIR (SCH# 2004051108) was completed in compliance with
CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder; and 

(3) The previous EIR (SCH# 2004051108) reflects the independent judgment
of the City Council; and 

(4) All previously adopted mitigation measures, which are applicable to the
Project, shall be a condition of Project approval and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Item D - 3 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-4-

SECTION 2: Based upon the information presented to the DAB, and the specific 
findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds that the preparation of a subsequent 
or supplemental EIR is not required for the Project, as the Project: 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the EIR that will require major
revisions due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the EIR due to the 
involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of the previously identified significant effects; and 

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the 
time the EIR was adopted/certified, that shows any of the following: 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the EIR; or 

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the EIR; or 

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or  

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 

SECTION 3: Based upon the substantial evidence presented to the DAB during 
the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 and 
2, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 

(1) The Project is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to location
of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has 
been designed consistent with the requirements of The Edenglen Specific Plan, including 
standards relative to residential land uses, specifically for the P7 – Single Family 
Detached development standards, as well as required lot coverages, building setbacks, 
parking requirements, building height, landscaping, fences and walls; and 

(2) The Project will complement and/or improve upon the quality of existing
development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to 

Item D - 4 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-5-

protect the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed 
project. The proposed location of the Project, and the proposed conditions under which it 
will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the Policy Plan component of The 
Ontario Plan and the City’s Development Code, the Edenglen Specific Plan, and, 
therefore, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and general welfare; and 

(3) The Project will not have a significant adverse impact on the environment.
The environmental impacts of the Project were reviewed in conjunction the previously 
adopted EIR (SCH# 2004051108) for the Edenglen Specific Plan and supporting 
documentation; and 

(4) The Project is consistent with the development standards set forth in the
Development Code and the Edenglen Specific Plan. The proposed project has been 
reviewed for consistency with the development standards contained in the City of Ontario 
Development Code, which are applicable to the Project, including those related to the 
particular single family residential land use being proposed (Table 5B – P7: Site 
Development Standards Single Family Detached), as well as building lot coverage, 
building setbacks, parking requirements, building height, architectural design, 
landscaping and walls. As a result of such review, staff has found the project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, to be consistent with the 
Edenglen Specific Plan; and 

(5) The Project is consistent with the design guidelines set forth in the
Development Code and Edenglen Specific Plan. The proposed project has been reviewed 
for consistency with the design guidelines contained in the City of Ontario Development 
Code and Edenglen Specific Plan, which are applicable to the Project, including those 
guidelines relative to walls and fencing; lighting; streetscapes and walkways and building 
design. As a result of such review, staff has found the project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, to be consistent with the applicable design 
guidelines of the Edenglen Specific Plan. 

SECTION 4: Based upon the findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 
through 3, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission: 

(1) Approves the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in
the Department reports, included as Attachment “A” of this Decision, and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

SECTION 5: The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or 
proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant 
of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in 
the defense. 

Item D - 5 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-6-

SECTION 6: The documents and materials that constitute the record of 
proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario 
City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records 
is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of December 2016. 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item D - 6 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-7-

Exhibit A: Project Location Map 

Item D - 7 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-8-

Exhibit B: Site Plan 

Item D - 8 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-9-

Item D - 9 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-10-

Item D - 10 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-11-

Exhibit C: Elevations 

Item D - 11 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-12-

Item D - 12 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-13-

Item D - 13 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-14-

Item D - 14 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-15-

Item D - 15 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-16-

Item D - 16 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-17-

Item D - 17 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-18-

Item D - 18 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-19-

Item D - 19 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-20-

Item D - 20 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-21-

Item D - 21 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-22-

Item D - 22 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-23-

Exhibit D: Landscape Plan 

Item D - 23 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV16-042 
December 5, 2016 

-24-

Attachment “A” 

FILE NO. PDEV16-042 
DEPARTMENTAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

(Departmental conditions of approval to follow this page) 

Item D - 24 of 38



Meeting Date: December 5, 2016 

File No: PDEV16-042 

Related Files: PMTT05-012 (Tract 17560) & PMTT05-013 (Tract 17558) 

Project Description: A Development Plan to construct 55 single-family homes on approximately 7.07 
acres of land within the P7 (single-family detached) residential land use designation of the Edenglen 
Specific Plan, located within two neighborhoods: the first bounded by Tulane Way to the north, Hampton 
Way to the east, Bradley Lane to the south and Claremont Drive to the west; and the second bounded by 
Riverside Drive to the north, the SCE utility easement corridor the east, Heritage Lane to the south and 
Cambridge Drive to the west. (APNs: 218-931-01 thru 23, 218-931-75 thru 87 and 218-941-57 thru 78); 
submitted by Brookcal Ontario, LLC. 

Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 
Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct) 
Email: lmejia@ontarioca.gov 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2010-021 on March 16, 2010. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 

2.1 Time Limits. 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Section 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 25 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Section: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV16-042 
Page 2 of 4 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 

2.3 Landscaping. 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Section. 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Section. 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Section, prior to the commencement of 
the changes. 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 

2.5 Disclosure Statements. 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each 
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may
be more severely impacted in the future. 

(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses
and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 

(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County
Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. 

(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s)
will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district. 

2.6 Environmental Review. 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction
with File No. PSP03-005, a Specific Plan for which an EIR (SCH# 2004051108) was previously adopted by 
the City Council on November 1, 2005. This application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" 
provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent 
projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of 
project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 

Item D - 26 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Section: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV16-042 
Page 3 of 4 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 

2.7 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 

2.8 Additional Fees. 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

2.9 Additional Requirements. 

(a) All applicable conditions specified in the Conditions of Approval for File No’s.
PMTT05-012 (TM 17560) and PMTT05-013 (TM 17558) shall apply. 

(b) All applicable conditions specified in the Conditions of Approval for File No.
PSP03-005 (Edenglen Specific Plan) shall apply. 

(c) All lots shall meet the lot coverage requirement of 55%. Lots 15 and 20 of Tract
Map 17558 and lots 16, 25 and 42 of Tract Map 17560 shall have their building footprints revised to an 
alternate Plan and meet the 55% lot coverage requirement.  

(d) Window grid patterns shall be consistent on all four elevation sides to be consistent
with the proposed front elevations. 

(e) Lots 1, 10, 18, 19 and 23 of Tract Map 17558 shall be treated with enhanced
elevations. 

(f) Lots 11, 14, 15, 18, 19, 23, 24, 29, 30, 34, 35, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44 and 45 of
Tract Map 17560 shall be treated with enhanced elevations. 

(g) The vertical siding shall be wrapped to a natural point on the Plan 1 Cottage left
elevation. 

Item D - 27 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Section: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV16-042 
Page 4 of 4 

(h) The rectangular inset on the front elevation of the Plan 3 Spanish and Ranch shall
be treated with a decorative iron grille or appropriate element for each architectural style. 

Item D - 28 of 38



Item D - 29 of 38



TO: PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Lorena Mejia 

FROM: BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

DATE: October 18, 2016 

 SUBJECT: PDEV16-042 

1. The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

No comments.

KS:lm

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

Item D - 30 of 38



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV16-042

Edenglen SP P-7

218-931-01 thru 24, 218-931-75 thru 89 & 218-941-63 thru 218-941-78

Vacant lots graded

Single Family Residential - 55 units

7.78

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

See Attached Condition

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Lorena Mejia

11/21/16

2016-072

n/a

30 ft

200 ft plus

Item D - 31 of 38



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

New Residential land uses are required to have a Recorded Overflight Notification appearing on the Property Deed
and Title incorporating the following language:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2016-072

Item D - 32 of 38



Item D - 33 of 38



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

11/14/16 
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237

D.A.B. File No.:
PDEV16-042

Case Planner: 

Lorena Mejia 
Project Name and Location: 
Brookfield Residential 
3200 Park Center Drive 
Applicant/Representative: 
Brookfield Residential -Sommer Fox 
3200 Park Center Drive  
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated   10/12/16  ) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated      ) has not been approved. 
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED

1. Note on grading plans: for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished
grades at 1 ½” below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1.

2. Show parkway landscape including plant legend and street trees spaced 30’ apart.
3. Consider small sections of turfgrass (15’ length) in parkways between street trees ( approx. 30’

oc) and groundcover and mulch at trees (15’ length). Use subsurface dripline system for turf.
4. Change Camphor to a drought tolerant tree like Quercus agrifolia, Ulmus True Green or Pistache.
5. Add a plant legend and design for the front yard typical landscapes and provide separate palettes

for north and east facing sites and south and west facing sites.
6. Call out type of proposed irrigation system ( drip or drip line) and include preliminary MAWA

calculation. Mawa and ETWU on construction plans shall include each lot.
7. Show landscape hydrozones to separate low water from moderate water landscape.
8. Note that irrigation plans shall provide separate systems for tree stream bubblers with pc screens.
9. Note for agronomical soil testing and include report on landscape plans. For phased projects, a

new report is required for each phase or a minimum of every 6 homes in residential
developments.

10. Show and call out concrete mowstrips to identify property lines along open areas or to separate
ownership or between maintenance areas.

11. Show typical lot drainage and include a catch basin with gravel sump below each before exiting
property, if no other water quality infiltration is provided.

12. Residential projects shall include a stub-out for future back yard irrigation with anti-siphon valves.

13. Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii,
Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis, Sambucus Mexicana, etc.) in appropriate locations.

14. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards

15. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape
plan check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees
are:

Plan Check—5 or more acres ............................................... $2,326.00 
Plan Check—less than 5 acres ..............................................$1,301.00 

Item D - 34 of 38

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards


Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections) ....................... $278.00 
Inspection—Field - additional...................................................... $83.00 

Once items are complete you may email an electronic set to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item D - 35 of 38

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner  
 Planning Department

FROM: Lora L. Gearhart, Fire Protection Analyst 
 Fire Department

DATE: November 10, 2016 

SUBJECT: PDEV16-042 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 55 
SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS ON APPROXIMATELY 7.78 ACRES 
OF LAND LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
RIVERSIDE DRIVE AND MILL CREEK AVENUE, WITHIN THE P-7 
SFD-VARIABLE LOT LAND USE DISTRICT OF THE EDENGLEN 
SPECIFIC PLAN (APNS: 0281-931-01 THROUGH 0281-931-24; 0218-
931-75 THROUGH 0281-931-89; AND 0218-941-63 THROUGH 0218-941-
78)

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   No comments. 

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

A. 2013 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V-B wood frame

B. Type of Roof Materials:  non-rated

C. Ground Floor Area(s):   Plan 1 2,995 sq. ft. 
Plan 2 2,548 sq. ft.  
Plan 3 2,305 sq. ft.   

D. Number of Stories:  1 and 2 story

E. Total Square Footage:

F. 2013 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R-3, U

Item D - 36 of 38



2 of 3  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1.0 GENERAL 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 
drawings.  

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty (20) ft. wide. See 
Standard #B-004.   

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2013 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 
spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved 
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to 
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13 D. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 

Item D - 37 of 38



3 of 3  

shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1.3280 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 
requirements of the California Building Code. 

Item D - 38 of 38


	20161205_DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	December 5, 2016
	John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director
	Fire Marshal Art Andres, Fire Department


	20161205_Item A_Minutes
	20161205_Item B_PDEV15-024
	20161205 File No. PDEV15-024 State Street Garage^01_AR
	20161205 File No. PDEV15-024 State Street Garage^02_COA
	PDEV15-024  COA Finals Other Depts_11-23-16
	1 PDEV15-024 Adv Plng COAs_10-20-16
	2 CD2015-036_PDEV15-024_PVAR15-005 ALUCP COAs_08-28-15
	3 PDEV15-024_Landscape COAs_11-10-16
	4 PDEV15-024  Final Engineering COA_11-21-16
	5 PDEV15-024, PVAR15-005 Fire COAs _07-29-15


	20161205_Item C_PDEV14-040
	20161205 Development Plan File No. PDEV14-040^01 MND AR
	20161205 Development Plan File No. PDEV14-040^02 MND Study
	Project Title/File No.: Villa Palmetto Apartments/File No. PDEV14-040
	Lead Agency: City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036
	Contact Person: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner (909) 395-2431
	Project Sponsor: Mrs. Linda Lui, 1401 S. Fourth Avenue, Arcadia, CA. 91006
	Project Location: The project site is located in southwestern San Bernardino County, within the City of Ontario.  The City of Ontario is located approximately 40 miles from downtown Los Angeles, 20 miles from downtown San Bernardino, and 30 miles from...
	Figure 1—REGIONAL LOCATION MAP
	Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight active or poten...
	iii) Require all new landscaping irrigation systems installed to be automated, high-efficient irrigation systems to reduce water use and require use of bubbler irrigation; low-angle, low-flow spray heads; or moisture sensors; and
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area currently served by the Ontario Fire Department. The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of se...
	Mitigation: None required.
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the Ontario Police Department. The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of...
	Discussion of Effects: The project will be required to pay school fees as prescribed by State law prior to the issuance of building permits. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, ...
	Mitigation: None required.
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. The project will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, ...
	Mitigation: None required.


	Project File No.: PDEV14-040
	Project Sponsor: Mrs. Linda Lui, 1401 S. 4th Avenue, Arcadia, CA. 91006

	20161205 Development Plan File No. PDEV14-040^03 AR
	20161205 Development Plan File No. PDEV14-040^4 COA

	20161205_Item D_PDEV16-042
	20161205 File No PDEV16-042^01 AR
	20161205 File No PDEV16-042^02 Planning COAs
	20161205 File No PDEV16-042^03 Department COAs




